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The year 2009 will be remembered as a year when
Singaporeans rallied together to tackle the global economic
downturn. While the International Labour Organisation
estimated that 20 million jobs were lost worldwide and
many countries suffered double-digit unemployment
rates, Singapore actually gained jobs during the downturn.
The overall unemployment rate peaked at 3.3% in Sep
2009 before recovering swiftly to 2.3% in Dec 2009.
The resilience of our workforce was due in part to the
Skills Programme for Upgrading and Resilience (SPUR)
initiative spearheaded by the Ministry of Manpower and
the Singapore Workforce Development Agency (WDA).
Through SPUR, we have helped companies to save jobs
and jobseekers to ﬁnd new jobs.
Even as the economy recovers, skills upgrading remains
important for all companies and workers. We will focus our
Continuing Education and Training (CET) efforts to deepen
skills in every job, for sustainable and inclusive growth, as
recommended by the Economic Strategies Committee.
The Government has committed to investing $2.5 billion in
further developing our CET system.

holistic training solutions for both employers and workers.
The Institute for Adult Learning will continue to raise the
expertise and professionalism of CET professionals and
encourage innovative practices among CET providers.
The CET system will provide more learning opportunities
for Professionals, Managers, Executives and Technicians
(PMETs), who now make up an increasing proportion of
the workforce. At the same time, we must continue to help
rank and ﬁle workers, especially lower-wage and lowerskilled workers, to build up their literacy, numeracy and
vocational skills, and help them develop the conﬁdence
and ability to keep up with the rapidly changing economy.
The launch of the Workfare Training Support scheme in
July 2010 is a major step in this direction.
As the lead agency tasked with the role of developing
Singapore’s CET system, WDA will be at the forefront of all
these efforts. With the continued support of our employers
and unions, I am conﬁdent that WDA will rise up to the
challenges and bring us closer to the vision of a CET
system that is among the best in the world.

Beyond building a strong skills foundation, we will
support skills deepening in specialised ﬁelds, build up more
cross linkages between the academic and Workforce Skills
Qualiﬁcations (WSQ) systems, and enhance the quality of
CET trainers and providers. The development of the two
national CET Campuses by 2013 will form focal points
of our CET system, each housing a vibrant community
of training providers who will work together to provide
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MESSAGE by CHAIRMAN
WDA began 2009 with the implementation of the Skills
Programme for Upgrading and Resilience (SPUR) to help
companies save jobs and unemployed workers ﬁnd jobs.
Within a year, close to 200,000 workers had undergone
SPUR training. Around 45,000 job seekers were placed
in jobs. Separate surveys conducted by the Ministry of
Manpower, Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce
& Industry and WDA validated the value of SPUR to
employers and workers.

9.4% to 12.3% respectively. More than 200,000 workers
attained WSQ modular Statements of Attainment in 2009,
doubling that of 2008. This is the result of increased effort
by WDA to reach out to companies and workers, at times
using ﬂexible and innovative approaches. For example,
we brought training to the workplace for retail workers
through “On-Site-Bite-Size” programmes at shopping
malls. We also contextualized service training to suit the
speciﬁc needs of the different service industries.

But even as we battled the economic crisis, WDA
continued to strengthen our national Continuing Education
and Training (CET) infrastructure. We expanded the
national Workforce Skills Qualiﬁcations (WSQ) system,
covering new industries such as wafer fabrication and
textile & fashion and setting up 5 new CET Centres,
bringing the number of CET Centres to more than 45. WDA
also worked with industry players and training institutions
to build up a pipeline of workers in new growth areas.
Examples include a Professional Conversion Programme
for Sustainable Design Consultants, a WSQ Graduate
Diploma in MedTech Manufacturing and programmes to
prepare our workforce for careers in the new Integrated
Resorts.

In 2009, we started a major effort to improve the quality
of our CET system. WDA’s Institute of Adult Learning
completed a developmental framework and roadmap
for CET professionals, and introduced a Master of Arts
Degree in Lifelong Learning. It also launched a research
unit - the ﬁrst such unit focusing on adult learning and
CET in Singapore.
Employers and workers alike are seeing the beneﬁts of
training. A study by MOM showed that WSQ training helps
enhance the mobility for a wide spectrum of workers.
The beneﬁts of WSQ training were also shown in WDA
surveys in which 90% of employers and trainees reported
better work performance after training. 85% said that
they intend to participate in other WSQ programmes.

While we are encouraged by these results, we also
recognise that there is much more work to be done in
further developing CET in Singapore. The national focus
on productivity and capability-driven economic growth
will make CET even more important for Singapore. The
direction set by the Economic Strategies Committee
provides us a valuable compass that will guide our work.
Already, we are beginning to make some headway. For
example, the experience in reaching out to about 64,000
Professionals, Managers, Executives and Technicians
(PMETs) under the Professional Skills Programme during
the 2009 downturn puts us in good stead to make our
CET system more relevant for PMETs.
On behalf of the WDA Board of Directors, I would like to
thank our partners from industry, union and government
for their immense support, without which none of our
achievements in 2009 would have been possible. We look
forward to their continued support as we continue our role
of enhancing the competitiveness and employability of
our workforce through continuing education and training.

Employer awareness and adoption of WSQ in the
relevant industries increased from 23.8% to 35.8%, and
Tan Pheng Hock, Chairman

Message By Chairman
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QUOTE
by CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Having just taken over the helm of WDA in December
“20
2008, we found ourselves in a recession that had set
in deep and quickly. However our aims were clear –
save jobs by encouraging companies and workers to
sa
take up training instead of retrenchment and help the
ta
unemployed ﬁnd jobs. It is gratifying to say what we did
un
beneﬁted many. According to a survey by MOM in 2009,
be
nearly 3 in 4 companies surveyed postponed or reduced
ne
retrenchments due to the resilience package which
re
included SPUR. We also helped more than 55,000 workers
inc
ﬁnd jobs. We could not have achieved this without the
ﬁn
clear leadership and support of our board of directors,
cle
co
committed management team and passionate staff.
Th
They have all made the work that WDA has to undertake
po
possible. Looking ahead, 2010 will mark another
m
milestone as we shift our focus towards building up CET
to propel capability and productivity driven growth, under
th
the guidance of the National Productivity and Continuing
Ed
Education Council (NPCEC). It is a challenge I am looking
fo
pp
forward to as CET is a proven p
pillar of support
for the
ec
economy.

”

ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE

Chan Heng Kee

Quote By Chief Executive
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TAN PHENG HOCK

Group Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
Acacia I.T. Services (Singapore) Pte Ltd
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ST Engineering Ltd

MEMBERS
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Executive Vice-President (Business)
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CHIA MIA CHIANG
Principal
Ngee Ann Polytechnic

CHEONG HAI POH
Executive Assistant Manager
Conrad Centennial Singapore

OH WEE KHOON
Managing Director
Sobono Energy Pte Ltd

R DHINAKARAN
Managing Director
Jay Gee Enterprises (Pte) Ltd

TAN HOCK SOON
General Secretary
Food, Drink & Allied Workers Union
Central Committee Member
National Trades Union Congress

TAN KAY YONG
Vice President
India/China Sourcing & Supply, GMS
GlaxoSmithKline PLC

JOSEPHINE TEO
GOH MUI HONG
President & Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
ST Asset Management Ltd

Assistant Secretary-General
National Trades Union Congress

CHARLES WONG
NORA KANG

WDA BOARD
FOR APPOINTMENT TERM
FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2009
TO 31 AUGUST 2011
Note: All members of the current WDA Board
are also members of the Lifelong Learning
Endowment Fund Advisory Council.

Vice-President
National Trades Union Congress
President
DBS Staff Union

KUAH BOON WEE
Group Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
MTQ Corporation Ltd

JEFFREY WONG
(Member till 20 June 2010)
Former Divisional Director
Manpower Planning & Policy
Ministry of Manpower

ZAINUDIN BIN NORDIN
LEE ARK BOON
(Replaced Mr Jeffrey Wong with effect from 21 June 2010)
Divisional Director
Manpower Planning & Policy
Ministry of Manpower
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Managing Director
Charles & Keith International Pte Ltd

Mayor
Central Singapore District
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AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

GRANTS COMMITTEE

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN

CHAIRMAN

CHAIRMAN

OH WEE KHOON

BILL CHANG

GOH MUI HONG

Managing Director
Sobono Energy Private Limited

Executive Vice-President (Business)
Singapore Telecommunications Limited

President & Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
ST Asset Management Ltd

MEMBERS

MEMBERS

MEMBERS

NORA KANG

TAN PHENG HOCK

CHAN HENG KEE

Vice-President
National Trades Union Congress
President
DBS Staff Union

ZAINUDIN NORDIN
Mayor
Central Singapore District

President & Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
ST Engineering Ltd

Chief Executive
Singapore Workforce Development Agency

JOSEPHINE TEO

LEE ARK BOON

Assistant Secretary-General
National Trades Union Congress

(Replaced Mr Jeffrey Wong
with effect from 21 June 2010)
Divisional Director
Manpower Planning & Policy
Ministry of Manpower

RENUMERATION COMMITTEE
CHAIRMAN
TAN KAY YONG
Vice President
India/China Sourcing & Supply, GMS
GlaxoSmithKline PLC

MEMBERS
CHIA MIA CHIANG
Principal
Ngee Ann Polytechnic

CHARLES WONG
Managing Director
Charles & Keith International Pte Ltd

JEFFREY WONG
(Member till 20 June 2010)
Divisional Director
Manpower Planning & Policy
Ministry of Manpower

JACQUELINE LOH
Assistant Managing Director
Finance, Information Technology & Risk Group
Monetary Authority of Singapore

WDA BOARD
COMMITTEES
FOR APPOINTMENT TERM
FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2009
TO 31 AUGUST 2011
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JENNIE CHUA
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN
Chief Corporate Ofﬁcer
CapitalLand Limited

ABDUL RAHMAN BIN MOHAMED SAID
Managing Director
Maxinfo Communications Pte Ltd

K KARTHIKEYAN
General Secretary
United Workers of Petroleum Industry

PHILIP ONG
Director, Strategic Policy
Ministry of the Environment & Water Resources

BRUCE POH
Director & Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
Institute of Technical Education

CYRILLE TAN
General Secretary
United Workers of Electronic & Electrical Industries

BOARD MEMBERS
WHO LEFT
WE WOULD LIKE TO THANK
THE FOLLOWING FORMER BOARD
MEMBERS FOR THEIR SERVICE
FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2007
TO 31 AUGUST 2009
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WDA MANAGEMENT TEAM

CHAN HENG KEE

GOH ENG GHEE

ANIL DAS

JENNIFER TAN

Chief Executive

Deputy Chief Executive

Senior Director
Industry Skills
& Planning Ofﬁce

Senior Director
Policy Division and
Employment Facilitation
Division

GOG SOON JOO

CHAN SHIOK WAH

OW SENG FONG

SIM SOO KHENG

Executive Director
Institute for Adult Learning

Chief Information
Ofﬁcer

Director
Corporate Development
Division

Director
Corporate & Marketing
Communications Division

We would like to thank the services of Gary Willmott (Executive Director, IAL) who left 31 Jul 2010 and James Ong (CIO) who left 16 Aug 2009

WDA Management Team

AZZLI JAMAIN

SHARON TAN

HEE SOO YIN

Director
Creative & Professional Services Division

Director
Finance & Administration Division

Director
Generic Skills Development Divison

ANG CHAI SOON

LYNN NG

KOH TAT SUAN

Director
Healthcare, Retail & Business Services Division

Director
Incentives Policy & Management Division

Director
Institute for Adult Learning

JULIA NG

HUI MEI SAN

TEO SIO HOON

Director
Manufacturing & Construction Division

Director
Quality Assurance Divison

Director
Tourism Division
WDA Management Team
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MR ANG HIN KEE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER EMPLOYMENT &
EMPLOYABILITY INSTITUTE (e2i)

“

We work closely together to help Singaporeans become
more employable. 2009 was an exciting year, whereby we
helped in the recruitment for the two Integrated Resorts,
Edward Lifesciences and ION Orchard. We also created
and launched the WSQ national skills framework for Wafer
Fabrication and Tripartite Nautical training award. Moving
forward, we will collaborate closely to help companies raise
productivity, train workers for higher value jobs, and create
inclusive growth amongst our workforce.

”

MR KOH JUAN KIAT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
SINGAPORE NATIONAL EMPLOYERS FEDERATION
has played an important role in helping companies
“tideSPUR
over the recession. As the economy recovers, companies

PARTNER
QUOTES

in Singapore must face global competition head on. SNEF
has been working with WDA to help companies raise their
capabilities and productivity through skills training, as well
as leveraging on the Human Resource WSQ framework to
develop their HR capabilities. I hope that through our efforts,
companies in Singapore will sharpen their competitive
edge and secure their places in the global economy.

”

Partner Quotes

Partner Quotes
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MR SIMON ONG

MR TAN HANG CHEONG

CHAIRMAN
CREATIVE DESIGN MANPOWER SKILLS AND TRAINING
COUNCIL
GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR
KINGSMEN CREATIVES LIMITED

PRINCIPAL
SINGAPORE POLYTECHNIC
year, Singapore Polytechnic has worked
“withOverWDAthe topast
launch new courses for professionals such as
Information & Communications Technology, Engineering Services
and Pharmaceuticals/Biologics. I am conﬁdent that even as
Singapore’s economy recovers, demand for training will remain
strong as professionals need to up-skill themselves to enhance
their relevance to the new economy. In the coming year, we will
forge strategic CET alliances with industry partners and develop
new programmes with WDA to meet industry needs. Programmes
in the pipeline include a WSQ Higher Certiﬁcate in Process
Technology (Biologics Manufacturing) and WSQ Higher Certiﬁcate
in Process Technology (Pharmaceuticals Manufacturing).

”

MR LEE KOK CHOY
CHAIRMAN
WAFER FABRICATION INDUSTRY SKILLS
AND TRAINING COUNCIL
PRESIDENT
TECH SEMICONDUCTOR SINGAPORE PTE LTD
The development of common skill standards for the wafer
“fabrication
industry – WSQ Wafer Fabrication – is a major
milestone for the industry. The framework will beneﬁt the
Associate Engineers and Production Supervisors in the industry,
equipping them with nationally recognised skills as well as
improving their career prospects. Wafer Fabrication companies
will also beneﬁt as these workers will be cross-trained, enabling
them to be deployed to other work areas, hence improving
productivity. Thanks to concerted efforts by WDA, unions and
industry players, the development of the framework took less
than a year. It is an achievement we can all be proud of.

“

Companies who want to succeed in today’s competitive markets
will need to design and market quality products and services
that capture the public’s imagination. It was with this in mind
that we developed the Design WSQ framework to enhance the
capabilities of design professionals. This framework will help us
move towards our vision of a vibrant and self-sustaining creative
cluster to propel Singapore’s Creative Economy. There has never
been a better time to be a professional in the creative industries
as Singapore transits into an innovation driven economy, fuelled
by the creative capacity of our workforce.

”

MR CHRISTOPHE MEGEL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AT-SUNRICE GLOBALCHEF ACADEMY
At-Sunrice’s goal is to provide an enriching culinary art
“education,
helping those with the passion and desire to
enter the F&B industry and excel. I am honoured that WDA
has conferred on At-Sunrice the status of National CET
Institute (NCI). This is exciting times for the F&B industry
as Singapore aims to reinvent itself as a tourism hub with
events such as F1, the Youth Olympics in store as well as
the Integrated Resorts going into full swing in 2010. I am
looking forward to the opening of our new integrated F&B
Campus in 2011 which will offer more programmes in critical
areas such as restaurant management, wine, beverage and
restaurant services.

”

”
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ACHIEVEMENTS FOR FY09

CONFRONTING

THE CRISIS,

BUILDING
THE FUTURE
ONE YEAR AFTER THE LAUNCH OF THE SKILLS
PROGRAMME FOR UPGRADING AND RESILIENCE (SPUR)
IN DECEMBER 2008, SINGAPORE’S ECONOMY SHRANK
BY 2% IN 2009 WHILE THE WORLD’S ECONOMIES
GLOBALLY REGISTERED A NEGATIVE 0.8%.
Riding on the robust and comprehensive national Continuing
Education and Training (CET) system that WDA built up over
the years, SPUR was swiftly launched to mitigate the effects
of the downturn on our workers. Under SPUR, WDA priorities
in Financial Year (FY) 2009 were:
s CUT COSTS AND SAVE JOBS by helping companies
manage excess manpower and reduce unemployment
s RE-SKILL AND UP-SKILL WORKERS and convert them to
new jobs in growth sectors
s BUILD CAPABILITIES FOR RECOVERY by strengthening the
workforce and positioning them for the upturn

Achievements For FY09

Achievements For FY09
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new Process Plant Technicians despite the
economic slowdown last year. These new
recruits would train at the Chemical Process
Technology Centre (CPTC) for a period of 18
months, combined with work attachment back at
their plant sites. With WDA providing course fee
support and EDB the Training Allowances, GTS
enabled employers to acquire both competent
and job-ready technicians.

Beyond expanding course offerings and providing more
funding support, WDA also undertook other initiatives to
help employers. These include:
s HELPING EMPLOYERS ENHANCE THEIR INHOUSE TRAINING CAPABILITY.
Recognising that in-house training is an integral
part of the training landscape, WDA collaborated
with companies to package their own in-house
training with SPUR courses to address the
speciﬁc skill needs of their company. WDA
also worked with CET Centres to customise
bridging programmes which allowed in-house
trainees to attain full qualiﬁcations without
undergoing the entire programme. This approach
provided their employees all rounded training
in company-speciﬁc and industry-recognised
Singapore Workforce Skills Qualiﬁcations (WSQ)
training while at the same time, the companies
enjoyed enhanced SPUR funding. Examples
of companies which beneﬁted were Singapore
Airlines, Wing Tai Retail Pte Ltd, Port of
Singapore Authority and Ritz Carlton.

CUT COSTS & SAVE JOBS
SPUR has seen encouraging results. Between 1
December 2008 and 31 March 2010, about 220,000
workers commenced or completed training. About 80%
of the 4,000 companies that participated in SPUR had less
than 200 employees. The top industries that participated
in SPUR training were hotel, food & beverage, retail
followed by the electronics and electrical industries.
The positive response to SPUR can be attributed to the
relevancy of the courses it offered to companies and
workers. Close to 2,800 courses were included under
SPUR, ranging from cross-industry courses such as
Certiﬁcate in Generic Manufacturing (CGM) to vocational
training courses in areas such as Precision Engineering
and Retail.

Achievements For FY09

SPUR along with the other government measures
to tackle the economic downturn made a signiﬁcant
impact in helping companies and workers cope with
the downturn. This was shown in a survey conducted
by the Ministry of Manpower which showed that about
3 in 4 (73%) companies would postpone their earlier
plans to lay off workers or reduce the number of affected
workers, as a result of the measures introduced by the
Government.

s INNOVATIVE CERTIFICATION TRACKS FOR
WORKERS IMPACTED BY THE DOWNTURN.
In 2009, WDA trained 17,938 workers in the
Certiﬁed Operations Specialist (COS) and
Certiﬁed Operations Professional (COP)
tracks. These comprised generic productivityinfused skills such as Quality Systems and 5S
to enhance employability of workers across
manufacturing industries and related jobs in
other sectors. The training helped improve the
mobility of workers to move between industries
and also helped companies save costs from
training new workers.
s ENCOURAGE EMPLOYERS TO INNOVATE AND
IMPROVE WORKING CONDITIONS.
Security companies were encouraged to tap
on the SPUR funding to adopt productivity
enhancement technology such as visitor
management systems and CCTV in their
workplace. With the improvements in the work
environment, the companies were able to
introduce better pay and working hours to attract
jobseekers into the industry.

s RAPID DEVELOPMENT OF NEW
WSQ FRAMEWORKS.
WDA collaborated with six major players1 in
the wafer fabrication industry to launch a new
Wafer Fabrication WSQ framework in August
2009. The development of the framework took
less than a year instead of the usual 24 months
due to the strong commitment by the six pioneer
companies as well as our union partners. For the
ﬁrst time, Engineers and Associate Engineers
from this industry could train under a nationally
recognised skills framework to enhance the
competitiveness of their companies and improve
their productivity.
1

s CROSS-AGENCY FUNDING COLLABORATION.
WDA, in partnership with EDB, introduced the
Graduate Training Scheme (GTS) to enable
chemical plant employers to continue to recruit

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Singapore Pte Ltd (previously known
as Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing Ltd), Micron
Technology, Inc. (previously known as Numonyx Pte Ltd),
STMicroelectronics Pte Ltd, Systems on Silicon Manufacturing
Co Pte Ltd, United Microelectronics Corporation (Singapore
branch), and TECH Semiconductor Singapore Pte Ltd
Achievements For FY09
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RE-SKILL & UP-SKILL
WORKERS
PLACING WORKERS INTO JOBS
Between 1 December 2008 and 31 March 2010, WDA’s
career centres at the Community Development Councils
(CDCs) and NTUC’s Employment and Employability
Institute (e2i) collectively helped over 55,000 workers
ﬁnd jobs through the Skills Programme for Upgrading
and Resilience (SPUR). Of the job-seekers placed by
the WDA career centres, about 70% were rank-and-ﬁle
workers with secondary or less education. 55% were

aged 40 years and above.
WDA also worked in partnership with self-help groups
and other organisations to help another 1,360 job seekers
through programmes targeted at speciﬁc segments of
the workforce. Examples include CareerLink Plus, which
helps the long term unemployed and Project Phoenix,
which helps ex-offenders.
SUPPORTING THE RE-EMPLOYMENT OF
MATURE WORKERS
With Singapore’s re-employment law coming into effect
by 2012, companies need to implement progressive

workplace practices to provide greater ﬂexibility in
retaining older workers and harnessing their valuable
experience beyond the minimum statutory retirement
age of 62. WDA continued to support companies and
mature workers in this effort through the ADVANTAGE!
scheme. Through the scheme, companies received
ﬁnancial grants in support of initiatives in implementing
HR systems, changes to working environment and
business and operational processes that directly boost
the recruitment, retention and re-employment of mature
workers. Working in partnership with the National Trades
Union Congress (NTUC), Singapore National Employers
Federation, (SNEF) and the Association of Small and
Medium Enterprises (ASME), we secured the commitment
of 205 companies to retain about 3,900 existing mature
workers and re-employing about 1,100 mature workers
beyond the age of 62.
MORE SUPPORT FOR PROFESSIONALS,
MANAGERS, EXECUTIVES AND TECHNICIANS
(PMETS)
In FY09, WDA introduced the Professional Skills
Programme (PSP) to provide greater focus to our
assistance to help PMETs. As of end-March 2010, close
to 75,000 PMETs commenced or completed training
under PSP.

POSITIVE IMPACT OF TRAINING ON WORKERS
AND COMPANIES
The positive impact of WSQ training to workers can be
seen from a survey conducted by WDA to assess the
outcome of WSQ training:
s -ORE THAN  OF TRAINEES AND COMPANIES
surveyed experienced better work performance
after training;
s -ORE THAN  OF TRAINEES SURVEYED WERE ABLE TO
apply the skills they have learnt at work;
s -ORE THAN  OF TRAINEES AND COMPANIES
surveyed indicated interest to continue with other
WSQ training programmes or to recommend
them to others; and
s #OMPANIES SURVEYED ALSO REPORTED POSITIVE
impact on other performance indicators such
as better quality of service and higher work
productivity since their employees undertook
WSQ training.

WDA also put in place about 50 Professional Conversion
Programmes (PCPs) under the PSP to help more PMETs
switch to new hiring sectors. As of end-March 2010, about
2,000 individuals had commenced or completed PCP
training. PCPs introduced in 2009 included university
courses (e.g. Bachelor of Social Work by UniSIM) and
new Singapore Workforce Skills Qualiﬁcations (WSQ)
diploma courses in areas such as Precision Engineering,
Fashion Technology and MICE & events.
To help PMETs enhance their job search efforts and
employability, WDA also introduced the PMET Career
Skills Workshops. Through these workshops, PMETs
learned how to write effective resumes, manage
interviews and tap on their network and other job search
channels. In total, about 1,200 PMETs attended the
workshops.
Achievements For FY09
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In FY09, close to 225,000 workers underwent WSQ
training. Cumulatively, a total of 430,000 workers
underwent WSQ training as at end FY09.
EXPANDING OUR CET CAPACITY
Located islandwide, CET Centres provide workers with
direct access to skills upgrading programmes as well
as employment advisory and job placement services.
By end FY09, there were more than 45 CET Centres.
Some examples of new CET Centres appointed in 2009
include the Strategic Technology Management Institute
of the National University of Singapore, Human Capital
(Singapore) Pte Ltd and Box Hill Institute Singapore.
Complementing the CET Centres were in-house and
smaller approved training providers accredited to
provide WSQ training. By end FY09, 500 such training
organisations were accredited as Approved Training
Organisations (ATOs) to deliver WSQ training, compared
to 388 in FY08.
CLOSE COLLABORATION WITH INDUSTRY IN NEW
GROWTH AREAS
In FY09, WDA continued to work with industry to identify
new growth areas and build up a pipeline of workers to
enter the industry. Highlights include:

BUILDING CAPABILITIES
FOR THE FUTURE
Besides managing the short-term challenges of helping
employers save jobs and jobseekers ﬁnd new jobs, WDA
did not lose focus on addressing longer term manpower
challenges. We continued to build up our workforce’s
capability by expanding and strengthening our CET
infrastructure and engaging industry to build up a pipeline
of skilled workers for new growth areas.

Achievements For FY09

NEW SKILLS STANDARDS TO MEET
INDUSTRY NEEDS
The Singapore Workforce Skills Qualiﬁcations (WSQ)
system is a national skills qualiﬁcations system designed
to equip workers with relevant employability, industry
and occupational skills to remain competitive and
employable. With competency-based certiﬁcation and
clear progression pathways, workers can use WSQ to
upgrade their skills and advance in their careers. In FY09,
WDA launched two new WSQ frameworks in Textile and
Fashion Technology and Wafer-Fabrication. This brings
the total number of WSQ frameworks to 24.

s MEDICAL TECHNOLOGY.
Medical Technology is a new area of growth
for Singapore that provides an excellent
opportunity for local electronics and precision
engineering industries to diversify and to expand
their businesses. WDA and SIMTech jointly
launched a new programme – the Precision
Engineering WSQ Graduate Diploma in MedTech
Manufacturing in October 2009. The new
programme helped new entrants and existing
professionals to capitalise on the excellent career
and job opportunities in the sector. A pilot batch
of 35 trainees commenced the course in January
2010.
Achievements For FY09
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s GREEN INDUSTRIES.
The stepping up of efforts to put Singapore
on the path of sustainable growth led WDA to
launch two key initiatives in Green Design and
Renewable Energy. The Professional Conversion
Programme (PCP) for Sustainable Design
Consultants was launched in March 2009, to
develop a skilled “green collar” workforce of
green building professionals. The pilot intake of
37 trainees is expected to complete the 2 year
postgraduate degree course by Q3 2011, which
leads to a Masters of Science in Sustainable
Building Design conferred by the University of
Nottingham. WDA also worked with a leading
photovoltaic manufacturer, Renewable Energy
Corporation (REC), to conduct WSQ Certiﬁed
Operations Specialist (COS) training for their
employees. In addition, WDA teamed up with
Singapore Polytechnic to roll-out a suite of
courses on photovoltaic system integration. As
of end of FY09, up to 200 trainees were trained
in the area of photovoltaic system design and
installation.
s GAMES DEVELOPMENT.
The global Games development industry is
expected to grow to US$44 billion in 2011. To
build a local manpower pipeline for this growing
industry, WDA launched the PCP in Games
Development in August 2009 in collaboration
with leading games publisher Ubisoft and
globally renowned education institution Digipen.
In FY09, 33 trainees signed up for the course,
and the ﬁrst intake is expected to complete
the course in August 2010. Eight WDA-DigiPen
Creative Talent Development Scholarships
(for Games industry), valued at S$20,000 per
scholarship, were awarded in 2009.
s DIGITAL ANIMATION.
Training for Digital Animation is delivered by
WDA’s 3 CET Centres, namely CG Protégé,
Egg Story Digital Arts School and 3dsense
Media School. The schools offer full-time

Achievements For FY09

training in WSQ Diploma in Animation, with
various specialisations in Character Animation,
Digital Visual Effects, 3D Modelling, Modelling,
Texturing, Lighting, Modelling and Rigging.
Several trainees have since graduated from the
programme to join the digital animation industry,
working in companies such as Double Negative
Singapore, Lucasﬁlm Animation Singapore,
Southern Star Singapore, Sunwoo Asia Paciﬁc
Singapore and Media Freaks. Moving forward,
WDA is working closely with industry partners
to explore new training initiatives to cater to
emerging skills in digital animation such as 3D
stereoscopic.
s INTEGRATED RESORTS (IRs).
WDA worked with Resorts World Sentosa and
Marina Bay Sands to recruit and train workers
in preparation for the phased openings of the
two IRs. Resorts World Sentosa participated
in 7 recruitment drives organised by the career
centres in 2009 and close to 5,000 Singaporeans
and PRs were directed to industry previews
and dedicated recruitment drives by the 2
IRs. Through WDA’s collaborative efforts and
partnership, the IRs recruited more than 10,000
Singaporeans and Permanent Residents.
INNOVATION IN TRAINING DELIVERY
WDA introduced the On-Site-Bite-Size (OSBS) Service
training programmes in 2009 to help small retailers
overcome barriers to training. The OSBS offered small
retailers the ﬂexibility to send their employees for training
near their shops and during hours convenient to them
so as not to disrupt their operations. To date, over 350
workers from more than 100 small establishments in over
14 shopping malls across the island completed OSBS
training. Examples included Jurong Point, Funan, Plaza
Singapura and Whitesands.

CONTEXTUALIZING TRAINING TO DIFFERENT
INDUSTRIES
In FY09, about 13,000 workers trained in the Certiﬁed
Service Professionals (CSP) Programme. To cater to
the speciﬁc needs of the different service industries,
WDA worked with industry partners and CET Centres
to contextualize the curriculum and training to speciﬁc
industries and organisational requirements for
companies such as Fairprice, M1, SATS, Fullerton Hotel
and McDonalds.
RAISING THE QUALITY OF THE TRAINERS AND
TRAINING DELIVERY
With the establishment of the Institute for Adult Learning
(IAL), we continued to enhance the quality of our CET
providers and the competency of our trainers. FY09 saw
IAL complete the “Professional Development Framework
and Roadmap for Trainers and Adult Educators”.
The framework offered pathways for upgrading from
Certiﬁcate to Masters level for trainers.
IAL’s ﬂagship programme to raise the quality of adult
trainers, the Advanced Certiﬁcate in Training and
Assessment (ACTA), trained more than 2,167 trainers
in FY09, of which 445 obtained full ACTA qualiﬁcations.
IAL also delivered a PCP under the SPUR programme,
in which 83 jobseekers were retrained to take on roles
as qualiﬁed trainers in their ﬁelds of expertise. In FY09,
IAL also hosted the Master of Arts Degree in Lifelong
Learning offered by the Institute of Education (IOE) at
the University of London. The course attracted an initial
cohort of 16 students.
2009 also saw IAL establish its Research Unit – the ﬁrst
on adult learning and CET in Singapore - and launched
its research strategy to build capability, knowledge, and
a research basis for improving policy and practice in
CET. During the year, ﬁve international Visiting Research
Fellows spent periods of up to three months at IAL to
contribute to the research programme.

Achievements For FY09
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FAST FORWARD FY10
A RESILIENT CET SYSTEM,
A PRODUCTIVE WORKFORCE
In February 2010, the Economic Strategies Committee (ESC)
laid out the recommendations to achieve sustained and inclusive
growth for the future. For FY10, WDA is ﬁrmly set on steering
our CET efforts to support the recommendations of the ESC,
with guidance from the National Productivity and Continuing
Education Council (NPCEC).
In 2010, WDA will focus on the following priorities:
s 3UPPORTING 0RODUCTIVITY AND #APABILITY $RIVEN
Economic Growth;
s &OSTERING )NCLUSIVE 'ROWTH
s 2AISING THE 1UALITY OF #%4
s 7ORKING 4OWARDS A &IRST #LASS #%4 3YSTEM
SUPPORTING PRODUCTIVITY AND CAPABILITY-DRIVEN
ECONOMIC GROWTH
Supporting the national productivity drive means investing in
skills, expertise and capabilities of Singaporeans collectively
through the following measures:
s MORE CET OFFERINGS FOR PROFESSIONALS,
MANAGERS, EXECUTIVES AND TECHNICIANS (PMETS).
WDA will introduce new WSQ courses and programmes
to nurture “T-shaped” PMETs, cultivating professionals
who possess deep skills in their area of expertise and
broad knowledge of horizontal skills (e.g. business
operations, project management, Human Resource).
s DEVELOP WSQ COURSES AT HIGHER LEVELS TO
DEEPEN “VERTICAL” SKILLS AMONG PMETS
We will also develop more WSQ courses at higher
levels such as graduate diplomas and certiﬁcates,
specialist diplomas and advanced certiﬁcates, to
deepen “vertical” skills among PMETs.
Image courtesy of the Singapore Tourism Board
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s DEEPEN SKILLS IN SPECIALISED EXPERTISE
AND FIELDS
Extending beyond the traditional boundaries of
building foundation skills, we will support skills
deepening, which will enable attainment of peaks
of excellence. This will include contextualising
training courses for maximum impact, such as
having customised curriculum in each sector
and introducing programmes in more specialised
professions, be it sommeliers and baristas in
the Food & Beverage sector; clinical research
personnel in the pharmaceutical sector; nurses in
specialised areas of nursing; or retail associates
selling different range of product.

s CET THAT SUPPORTS ENTERPRISE
PRODUCTIVITY IMPROVEMENT
Recognising that key decisions within enterprises
lie with leaders and managers, we will work
with relevant government agencies, industry
associations and training providers to introduce
more seminars, master classes and training
courses on productivity tools and concepts
targeting at the supervisory and managerial
levels. Companies can also tap on a suite of
productivity-related initiatives to assist them in
leveling up enterprise productivity.
FOSTERING INCLUSIVE GROWTH
We will extend targeted support to encourage lower-wage
and lower-skilled workers to upgrade their skills through
lifelong learning.
s ENCOURAGING SKILLS UPGRADING AMONG
LOW-WAGE WORKERS
WDA is working with the Ministry of Manpower
(MOM) and the Central Provident Fund Board
(CPF Board) to implement a 3-year Workfare
Training Support scheme effective 1 July 2010.
The scheme aims to encourage low-wage
workers to upgrade their skills through training
so that they can improve their employability
and upgrade to better jobs. It also encourages
employers to send their low-wage workers
for training. A specially designed training
programme – Workfare-Skill Up – will be put in
place to give low-skilled, low-wage workers a
stronger foundation in basic literacy so that they
can continue with workplace skills training and
enhance their ability to take on better jobs.
WDA will also offer more upgrading pathways
for low-wage workers in different sectors. For
example, we will be launching the Environmental
Cleaning WSQ framework in FY10 to address
the training needs of cleaners, team leaders
and supervisors in the cleaning industry. The
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Environmental Cleaning WSQ will be a key
criterion under the National Environment
Agency’s Cleaning Accreditation Scheme aimed
at recognising and distinguishing good cleaning
contractors.
s BETTER WORKPLACE
LITERACY PROGRAMMES
Workplace Literacy courses will be made
more accessible and further enhanced to help
low-wage workers raise their English literacy.
Courses and assessments will be made available
in four modalities – Reading, Listening, Speaking
and Writing. To enhance ﬂexibility in training,
shorter duration courses that focus on speciﬁc
language modalities will be introduced.
RAISING THE QUALITY OF CET AND WORKING
TOWARDS A FIRST-CLASS CET SYSTEM
Developing an outstanding, comprehensive, nation-wide
CET system remains a key priority in 2010 to support
a productivity-driven economy. With a highly educated
and skilled workforce, Singapore will be able to seize
opportunities in new economic areas and continually
adapt to change. In 2010, we will deploy these initiatives
to raise the quality of CET and shift towards a ﬁrst-class
CET system.
s RAISING THE QUALITY OF CET
PROFESSIONALS
WDA’s Institute for Adult Learning (IAL) will meet
the growing and more sophisticated needs of
CET professionals by expanding its range of
capability building programmes and establishing
an upgrading pathway for CET professionals.
New programmes to be introduced in 2010
include a Certiﬁed Workplace Trainer course
for in-house trainers, a Diploma in Adult and
Continuing Education and a Masters Degree in
Lifelong Learning offered in collaboration with the
University of London.

s PROMOTING GROUND-UP RESEARCH AND
EXPERIMENTATION
To foster a culture of productivity-driven
innovation, WDA will launch a Research and
Innovation Fund in 2010. The Fund will support
efforts in areas such as curriculum design,
training methodology and the pervasive use
of learning technology to sustain productivity
transformation in enterprises and industries.
s CET CAMPUSES AS FOCAL POINTS FOR CET
In FY10, WDA will start the development of two
National CET Campuses at Paya Lebar Central
and Jurong Lake District. When completed in
2013, these will be vibrant habitats for Continuing
Education and Training, where workers can
upgrade and acquire new skills, employers fulﬁll
their manpower and skills needs, and training
providers synergise to deliver best-in-class
training. The campuses will also be the focal
points of our larger CET system and deliver a total
of 150,000 training places for 50,000 workers
annually.
s WORKING IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE
NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY AND CONTINUING
EDUCATION COUNCIL
WDA will work under the leadership of the
National Productivity and Continuing Education
Council chaired by Deputy Prime Minister Teo
Chee Hean, which has identiﬁed the development
of a ﬁrst-class national CET system and the
entrenchment of a culture of continuous learning
as a key priority. The council will identify and
develop new areas of growth for the CET system,
in line with the skills needed for our economy. It
also intends to build stronger linkages and more
pathways between different qualiﬁcations and
institutions. Such joint efforts will raise CET in
Singapore to the next level, and move us closer to
our vision of having a First-Class CET System.
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SPUR DEVELOPMENTS
1 Dec 08
Launch of SPUR
1 Jan 09
Extended SPUR support for selected in-house training
Increase in number of courses to over 800
1 Feb 09
Increase in PMET course fee subsidy to 90%
11 Feb 09
Introduced absentee payroll calculation method for companies on shorter
work week
15 Feb 09
Extended SPUR support for selected WSQ Approved Training Organisations
(ATO)
22 Feb 09
Launch of Professional Skills Programme (PSP)
1 May 09
Launch of SPUR-JOBs to incentives companies to hire locals
Launch of PSPT traineeship programme
15 May 09
Increase in Absentee Payroll cap to $10 per hour
Launch of PMET Career Workshops by career centres
31 May 09
Six months on, SPUR attracted more than 124,500 workers and 1,800
companies. More than 19,000 workers found jobs through SPUR
15 Jul 09
The number of PMETs under SPUR reaches 50,000 making up close to a
third of the 165,500 total committed to SPUR
31 Nov 09
One year on, SPUR attracted more than 264,000 workers and 4,000
companies
More than 42,000 workers found jobs under SPUR
27 Jul 10
Looking beyond SPUR
Annoucement on the cessation of SPUR in Dec 10, as we shift our focus
towards driving productivity for long term growth.
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KATO SPRING
(SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
During the downturn in 2009, Kato Spring (Singapore) Pte
Ltd production level decreased drastically month by month
as customers either cut or stopped orders. Kato Spring
was committed to avoid layoffs as long as business was
still viable and apply the tripartite guidelines on managing
excess manpower.

SUCCESS
STORIES
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To manage the situation, the company decided to reduce
the number of working hours by operating on a ﬁve-day
week instead of the previous six-day week. In addition,
Kato Spring decided to minimize the idle working hours
by ramping up its training. Leveraging on SPUR funding,
about 142 of its workers from both production and
training underwent in-house training in Certiﬁed Generic
Manufacturing (CGM), Certiﬁed Operations Professional
programme (COP) and Workplace Health and Safety
(WSH). By continuing to invest in staff development during
the downturn, Kato Spring is better prepared to meet the
competition in preparation for the upturn ahead

Success Stories
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RITZ-CARLTON
MILLENIA
The Ritz-Carlton, Millenia Singapore has always shown
a strong commitment to skills training and service
excellence. While The Ritz-Carlton, Millenia possesses a
renowned service culture, it went one step further and
accredited its in-house training programme in April 2009
to the Tourism WSQ framework, enabling its employees
to attain nationally recognized WSQ qualiﬁcations. Since
then, more than 120 employees have undergone training
in various WSQ modules which include “Interact with
Guests” and workplace safety. The Ritz-Carlton, Millenia
also worked closely with Tourism CET Centres to augment
its in-house capabilities, sending deserving employees
to the Tourism Management Institute of Singapore
(TMIS), with 23 of them attaining full WSQ qualiﬁcations.
In addition, the hotel is also a CET partner, providing
apprenticeship opportunities to WSQ trainees from
At-Sunrice GlobalChef Academy, another CET Centre.
The Ritz-Carlton, Millenia believes that its employees are
the most important resource in its service commitment
and it is only through consistent and continuous
learning and development, can it remain the epitome of
service excellence.

Success Stories

ROBINSONS GROUP
Robinsons Group is well known not only for its retail
offering but also its excellence in customer service.
Over the years, it has earned service awards such as
the Singapore Retailers Association’s Excellent Service
Award and Service GEM, and the Singapore Tourism
Board’s Best Shopping Experience Award, to name a
few. Even with these accolades, Robinsons did not let
up on improving its employees’ service and retail skills
especially during the economic downturn in 2009.
Tapping on SPUR, 20 retail staff from Robinsons had
gone through the WSQ Certiﬁcate in Retail Operations
and another 27 retail staff were selected to receive
training under WSQ Retail full qualiﬁcations programme
at the Singapore Institute of Retail Studies. Robinsons
also worked with WDA to accredit and align its in-house
training, the Service Ambassador Program to the WSQ
Retail framework. Over 500 of its staff had undergone
training through Robinsons in-house training programme,
achieving over 1,000 SOAs.
Through SPUR, Robinsons aims to continuously reinforce
its deep-rooted service culture to constantly create a
whole shopping experience to attract and retain loyal
customers in the long run.

Success Stories
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MDM ANTHOUWANATH
MARGARET D/O CANNUSA

MR SIA BOON LENG

KITCHEN ASSISTANT, MOUNT ALVERNIA HOSPITAL

Mr Sia was working as a relief ﬁsh cutter at a wet market,
when he ﬁrst approached North East CDC for help in Sept
2009. His salary was not sufﬁcient to support his family
and he hoped that the career centre could help him ﬁnd
better employment opportunities. Through the assistance
of the career centre, he underwent training in generic
service skills to boost his conﬁdence and progressed on
to the WSQ in Security Operations providing him with the
skills needed to transit into the security sector. After the
completion of his training, he was successfully placed as
a Security Ofﬁcer with Metro (S) Pte Ltd., Mr Sia shared
that the training provided helped him successfully transit
into a new area of work which he is currently enjoying
as he has supportive employers. He now has a more
positive outlook, is better able to manage his ﬁnancial
commitments, and is appreciative of the opportunity to
apply the skills he has acquired.

Having left her last job as a cleaner in September 2008,
Mdm Anthouwanath was without a job for 9 months. She
was ﬁnancially strapped and had to seek social assistance
from the CDC. She approached the career centre at
North West CDC for assistance in ﬁnding a job in the F&B
industry as she sought greater job stability. Through the
assistance of the career centre, she underwent training
in WSQ Food Hygiene and was also put through work
trials with the community kitchen to familiarize her with
the F&B industry.
With a newfound conﬁdence as a result of the training,
she successfully found work as a Kitchen Assistant with
Mount Alvernia Hospital in August 2009 and is currently
enjoying her new scope of work as there are many
opportunities for learning on the job. Mdm Anthouwanath
is grateful for the help that she has received in ﬁnding a
stable job and is more conﬁdent of the future.

Success Stories

SECURITY OFFICER, METRO (S) PTE LTD
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MS SIAW RUIFAN
STAFF NURSE, SINGAPORE GENERAL HOSPITAL
Ms Siaw Ruifan was working as a sales coordinator at
an export company as her previous qualiﬁcation was a
Diploma in Chemical Engineering from a local polytechnic.
She left the export company in 2006 as she found the job
mundane with limited prospects. In July 2006, she started
in PCP Registered Nurses (2-year Dip in Nursing course
at NYP) and graduated in 2008, She is currently working
as a staff nurse at SGH and enjoys her job which she
ﬁnds very rewarding. Her greatest job satisfaction comes
from seeing her patients recover and gain a new lease
of life.

MR MUHAMMAD AZHAR BIN
MOHAMED RAHIM
GUEST SERVICES MANAGER, PARK HOTEL
With a passion for the hospitality industry, Mr Muhammad
Azhar joined Park Hotel Orchard as a Guest Services Ofﬁcer
in December 2004 and as a result of his good performance
was promoted to Senior Guest Services Executive in
2008. In 2009, with Park Hotel Orchard closing down
for a year’s renovation, Mr Muhammad Azhar underwent
WSQ Tourism training at the Ascott Centre of Excellence.
Equipped with the new knowledge and coupled with his
good performance, he was promoted to Guest Services
Manager in January 2010.
Mr Muhammad Azhar is thankful for the training
opportunities provided by Park Hotel and is looking
forward to the challenges in his new job.

Success Stories
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MS FATIMAH
MOIDEEN KUTTY
HUMAN RESOURCE DEPUTY DIRECTOR,
KHOO TECK PUAT HOSPITAL
Ms Fatimah Moideen Kutty was the Head of Pharmacy
of Alexandra Hospital from 2000 to 2008. With the
establishment of the new Khoo Teck Puat Hospital, she
was asked to help drive the transition as the Deputy
Director of Human Resources. Though she was already
armed with a Masters of Pharmacy (Clinical Pharmacy),
she took the initiative to undertake a HR course - Chief
People Ofﬁcer Programme to further expand her HR skillsets in Nov 2009. The course is run by Human Capital
Singapore (Pte) Ltd and aims to groom top executives and
corporate leaders who will champion the HR profession.
This training has equipped her with the HR skills to
progress and succeed in a new role.

Success Stories

MR JAYERN WOO
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT MANAGER,
WOO & WOO PRECISION ENGINEERING
Even though he had a Bachelor Degree specializing in
Mechanical Engineering, Mr Jayern Woo continued to
keep in step with the advances in PE by signing up for the
PE Engineering WSQ Specialist Diploma by the Singapore
Institute of Manufacturing Technology (SIMTech) in July
2009.
Currently a business development manager in Woo & Woo
Precision Engineering, Mr Jayern Woo immersed himself
in the latest complex technologies such as Laser-cutting
and High-speed Machining during the course.
Other than the knowledge he has gained, he has fostered
good relationships with the leaders in SIMTech which
will also guide SMEs like his to remain competitive in
Singapore’s manufacturing industry.

Success Stories
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SINGAPORE
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
We have audited the accompanying ﬁnancial statements of Singapore Workforce
Development Agency (“the Agency”) set out on pages 4 to 54, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2010, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in capital and accumulated surplus and cash ﬂow statement for the ﬁnancial
year then ended, and a summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

AGENCY’S MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

The Agency’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these ﬁnancial statements in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Workforce
Development Agency Act, Cap. 305D (“the Act”) and Statutory Board Financial Reporting
Standards (“SB-FRS”). This responsibility includes:

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Agency’s management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the ﬁnancial
statements.

OPINION
In our opinion:

(a) designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of ﬁnancial statements that are free from material misstatement
whether due to fraud or error;
(b) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

(a) the ﬁnancial statements of the Agency are properly drawn up in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Agency as at 31 March 2010
and of the results, changes in capital and accumulated surplus and cash ﬂows of the
Agency for the ﬁnancial year ended on that date; and

(c) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Agency have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these ﬁnancial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the ﬁnancial statements are free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the ﬁnancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the ﬁnancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the ﬁnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements

During the course of our audit, nothing came to our notice that caused us to believe that
the receipt, expenditure and investments of monies and the acquisition and disposal of
assets by the Agency during the ﬁnancial year have not been in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Public Accountants and Certiﬁed Public Accountants
Singapore, 15 July 2010
Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

2010
Notes

2009

Restricted funds

Total

General Fund

Restricted funds

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

Operating income

3

1,307,407

1,755,622

3,063,029

779,710

442,194

1,221,904

Other income

4

80,281

2,554

82,835

201,469

1,523,497

1,724,966

Other gains/(losses) - net

5

88,247

(31,661)

56,586

-

-

-

s !MORTISATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13

(1,015,318)

-

(1,015,318)

(93,382)

-

(93,382)

s $EPRECIATION OF PROPERTY PLANT EQUIPMENT

12

(687,251)

(306,754)

(994,005)

(863,396)

(172,119)

(1,035,515)

s %MPLOYEE COMPENSATION

6

(34,773,192)

(3,434,160)

(38,207,352)

(28,143,925)

(1,454,816)

(29,598,741)

s 'RANT DISBURSEMENTS

(1,000,000)

(137,379,670)

(138,379,670)

(1,401,402)

(48,150)

(1,449,552)

s 2ENTAL EXPENSES ON OPERATING LEASES

(3,762,645)

(378,557)

(4,141,202)

(1,323,814)

(190,519)

(1,514,333)

s 0ROFESSIONAL SERVICES

(5,661,779)

(77,539)

(5,739,318)

(4,081,581)

(252,073)

(4,333,654)

s -AINTENANCE EXPENSES

(3,186,412)

(321,181)

(3,507,593)

(3,082,773)

(677,780)

(3,760,553)

s 3UPPLIES AND MATERIALS

(1,109,347)

(778,184)

(1,887,531)

(1,033,128)

(1,156,779)

(2,189,907)

s 0UBLIC RELATIONS

(291,035)

(173,381)

(464,416)

(1,522,569)

(52,586)

(1,575,155)

s 4RAVEL EXPENSES

(482,232)

(18,966)

(501,198)

(550,537)

(7,031)

(557,568)

s !GENCY FEE PAID TO #ENTRAL 0ROVIDENT &UND "OARD

(598,382)

-

(598,382)

(544,599)

-

(544,599)

Expenditure

s '34 EXPENSES
s 4EMPORARY STAFF COST
s #OURSE RELATED TRAINERgS FEES
s /THERS

Deﬁcit before Government grants
Grants from the Government

7

(Deﬁcit)/Surplus before contribution to
Consolidated Fund
Contribution to Consolidated Fund
Net (deﬁcit)/surplus for the ﬁnancial year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive (loss)/income

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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General Fund

8

(969,011)

(115,132)

(1,084,143)

(765,199)

(58,451)

(823,650)

(1,609,182)

(283,666)

(1,892,848)

(863,547)

(46,909)

(910,456)

-

(2,208,057)

(2,208,057)

-

(278,190)

(278,190)

(1,187,146)

(297,812)

(1,484,958)

(1,218,143)

(83,428)

(1,301,571)

(56,332,932)

(145,773,059)

(202,105,991)

(45,487,995)

(4,478,831)

(49,966,826)

(54,856,997)

(144,046,544)

(198,903,541)

(44,506,816)

(2,513,140)

(47,019,956)

48,678,234

144,140,731

192,818,965

41,471,292

3,311,625

44,782,917

(6,178,763)

94,187

(6,084,576)

(3,035,524)

798,485

(2,237,039)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(6,178,763)

94,187

(6,084,576)

(3,035,524)

798,485

(2,237,039)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(6,178,763)

94,187

(6,084,576)

(3,035,524)

798,485

(2,237,039)

MR TAN PHENG HOCK

MR CHAN HENG KEE

Chairman

Chief Executive

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 March 2010

Notes

2010

2009

$

$

ASSETS

Notes

2010

2009

$

$

EQUITY

Current assets
Capital account

Cash and bank deposits

9

26,626,268

34,931,325

Trade and other receivables

10

640,075

2,778,937

Share capital

Other current assets

11

1,849,576

1,416,096

Accumulated surplus

29,115,919

39,126,358

17

- General fund
- Restricted funds

18

7,872,073

7,872,073

1,000

1,000

7,890,146

14,068,909

1,137,067

1,042,880

9,027,213

15,111,789

16,900,286

22,984,862

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

12

4,158,756

3,897,098

Intangible assets

13

7,113,435

5,097,234

11,272,191

8,994,332

40,388,110

48,120,690

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables

14

8,192,772

7,454,803

Government grants received in advance

15

4,579,002

9,592,642

12,771,774

17,047,445

10,716,050

8,088,383

Total liabilities

23,487,824

25,135,828

Net assets

16,900,286

22,984,862

Net assets of trust funds
Skills Development Fund

19

1,033,964,985

913,562,015

Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund

20

4,671,476

5,400,462

Skills Redevelopment Programme

21

5,505,364

16,113,957

1,044,141,825

935,076,434

Non-current liabilities
Deferred Government capital grants

16
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL
AND ACCUMLATED SURPLUS

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010
Note

Capital
account *

Notes

Share
capital

$

Accumulated surplus

$

Total

General fund

Restricted funds

Subtotal

$

$

$

7,872,073

Total comprehensive (loss)/
income for the ﬁnancial year
End of ﬁnancial year

$

Deﬁcit for the ﬁnancial year before Government grants

1,000

14,068,909

1,042,880

15,111,789

22,984,862

-

-

(6,178,763)

94,187

(6,084,576)

(6,084,576)

7,872,073

1,000

7,890,146

1,137,067

9,027,213

16,900,286

$

(198,903,541)

(47,019,956)

2,009,323

1,128,897

- Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(56,586)

-

- Interest income

(77,293)

(215,979)

(197,028,097)

(46,107,038)

- Trade and other receivables

2,136,097

(1,948,809)

- Other current assets

(269,739)

(213,394)

737,969

2,207,031

(194,423,770)

(46,062,210)

-

(719,053)

(194,423,770)

(46,781,263)

(4,488,573)

(4,519,790)

80,058

223,355

- Amortisation and depreciation

Change in working capital

2009
Beginning of ﬁnancial year

7,872,073
17

-

1,000

17,104,433
-

244,395
-

17,348,828
-

25,220,901
1,000

- Other payables
Cash used in operations

End of ﬁnancial year

$

Adjustments for:

Beginning of ﬁnancial year

Total comprehensive (loss)/
income for the ﬁnancial year

2009

Cash ﬂows from operating activities

2010

Issue of shares

2010

-

-

(3,035,524)

798,485

(2,237,039)

(2,237,039)

7,872,073

1,000

14,068,909

1,042,880

15,111,789

22,984,862

Contribution to Consolidated Fund
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash ﬂows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Interest received
Net proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

94,236

-

(4,314,279)

(4,296,435)

* The capital account represents the Government’s capital contribution for the establishment of the Singapore Workforce Development Agency.

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements

10

11

SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
ﬁnancial statements.

Notes

2010

2009

$

$

Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities
Grants received from Government - net
Issue of shares

17

Net cash generated from ﬁnancing activities

190,432,992

49,913,232

-

1,000

190,432,992

49,914,232

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
The Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“the Agency”) was established in
The Republic of Singapore under the Singapore Workforce Development Agency
Act, Cap. 305D. The address of the registered ofﬁce and principal place of
operations of the Agency is No. 1 Marina Boulevard #16-01 One Marina Boulevard,
Singapore 018989.
The principal activities of the Agency are:

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(8,305,057)

(1,163,466)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ﬁnancial year

9

34,931,325

36,094,791

Cash and cash equivalents at end of ﬁnancial year

9

26,626,268

34,931,325

(a) to serve as the national body in the areas of adult continuing education and
training, and the facilitation of employment and re-employment, and to advise
and make recommendations to the Government on matters, measures and
regulations connected with such areas, including formulation of policies, and the
provision of infrastructure and facilities in relation to such areas;
(b) to promote, facilitate and assist in the development of adult continuing education
and training so as to enhance the competitiveness and employability of the
Singapore workforce;
(c) to collaborate with industries and economic agencies to identify and promote the
enhancement of industry-speciﬁc skills;
(d) to promote the development, competitiveness and employability of the Singapore
workforce through co-ordination with economic agencies;
(e) to support, facilitate and assist in the re-employment of unemployed or
retrenched persons through job referral, retraining, upgrading of skills and other
employment facilitation efforts;
(f) to enhance, promote and support the use and improvement of best practices
in the management of human capital and workforce skills development in
Singapore;
(g) to encourage, promote and facilitate the development of the human resources
industry in Singapore;

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements

Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements

12

13

SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal activities of the Agency are: (continued)
(h) to promote, facilitate and assist in the identiﬁcation, development and upgrading
of skills and competencies required of the workforce to support Singapore’s
economy;
(i) to support, direct, encourage and undertake research in adult continuing
education and training;
(j) to direct, promote and facilitate the upgrading of adult continuing education
and training infrastructure, and the upgrading of professional standards of adult
trainers;
(k) to establish and implement regulatory policies, codes of practice, strategies,
measures or any other requirements so as to enhance the professional standards
of adult continuing education and training offered in Singapore;
(l) to administer programmes for adult continuing education and training;
(m) to undertake the promotion of lifelong learning and to create, foster and
encourage public awareness and understanding of the importance of lifelong
learning;
(n) to administer the Skills Development Fund (“the SDF”) in accordance with the
Skills Development Levy Act (Cap. 306);
(o) to provide ﬁnancial support by way of grants, loans or otherwise so as to give
effect to the functions and objects of the Agency;
(p) to undertake, direct and support the analysis and dissemination of labour market
information and trends to the public;
(q) to represent the Government internationally in respect of matters relating to adult
continuing education and training and public employment services; and
(r) to carry out such other functions as are imposed upon the Agency by or under
the Act or any other written law.

Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements

2.1 Basis of preparation
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statutory Board
Financial Reporting Standards (SB-FRS), established by the Accountant - General.
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except as disclosed in the accounting policies as below.
The preparation of these ﬁnancial statements in conformity with SB-FRS requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Agency’s
accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and assumptions. There are no areas of signiﬁcant estimates or judgement used in
the preparation of these ﬁnancial statements that have a signiﬁcant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next ﬁnancial year.
Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2009
On 1 April 2009, the Agency adopted the new or amended SB-FRS and Interpretations
to FRS (“INT SB-FRS”) that are mandatory for application from that date. Changes
to the Agency’s accounting policies have been made as required, in accordance
with the relevant transitional provisions in the respective SB-FRS and INT SB-FRS.
The following is the amended SB-FRS that is relevant to the Agency:
SB-FRS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effective from 1 January 2009).
The revised standard prohibits the presentation of items of income and expenditure (that
is, ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the statement of changes in capital and accumulated
surplus. All non-owner changes in equity are shown in a performance statement, but
entities can choose whether to present one performance statement (the statement of
comprehensive income) or two statements (the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income). The Agency has chosen to adopt the former alternative. Where
comparative information is restated or reclassiﬁed, a restated balance sheet is required
to be presented as at the beginning comparative period. There is no restatement of the
balance sheet as at 1 April 2008 in the current ﬁnancial year.

Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Income recognition

2.4

(a) Workers’ assessment fees, application fees and course fees
Workers’ assessment fees, application fees and course fees are recognised on
an accrual basis.
(b) Rental income
Rental income is recognised in income and expenditure on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
(b) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Grants from the Government
The Agency receives various types of grants to meet its operating and development
expenditure. The various types of grants received are disclosed in Notes 15 and 16
of the ﬁnancial statements.
Government grants received for the purchase or the construction of depreciable
assets are accounted for as deferred capital grants. The deferred capital grants
are amortised and charged to income and expenditure over the period necessary
to match the annual depreciation charge of these assets or when the assets are
disposed or written off. Where the grants relate to an expense item, it is recognised in
income and expenditure over the periods necessary to match them on a systematic
basis, to the costs, which it is intended to compensate.
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the
grants will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with.

2.3 Trust funds
2.5 Deferred Government capital grant
Trust funds are funds where the Agency is not the owner and beneﬁciary of. The
Agency is merely administering the funds on behalf of the holders of these funds.
The income and expenditure of these funds are taken to the funds accounts and
the net assets relating to these funds are shown as separate line items on the
balance sheet. Trust funds include the following: Skills Development Fund, Lifelong
Learning Endowment Fund and Skills Redevelopment Programme.

The deferred Government capital grant is amortised and charged to income and
expenditure over the periods necessary to match the depreciation of the property,
plant and equipment ﬁnanced by the related grant. On disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the balance of the related grant is recognised in
income and expenditure to match the net carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment disposed.

Trust funds are accounted for on an accrual basis, except for the Lifelong Learning
Endowment Fund which is accounted for on a cash basis. With effect from 1 April
2009, the Skills Redevelopment Programme is funded by the Lifelong Learning
Endowment Fund.
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Employee compensation

2.7 Operating leases (continued)

(a) Deﬁned contribution plans
The Agency’s contributions to deﬁned contribution plans are recognised as
employee compensation expense when the contributions are due, unless they
can be capitalised as an asset.
(b) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

2.7 Operating leases
(a) When the Agency is the lessee:

(b) When the Agency is the lessor:
The Agency leases out certain property, plant and equipment to third parties.
Lessor - Operating lease
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Agency retains substantially
all risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classiﬁed as operating leases.
Rental income from operating leases (net of any incentives given to the lessees)
is recognised in income and expenditure on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
Initial direct costs incurred by the Agency in negotiating and arranging operating
leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised as
an expense in income and expenditure over the lease term on the same basis as
the lease income.

The Agency leases certain property, plant and equipment from third parties.
Lessee - Operating lease
Leases of property, plant and equipment where substantially all risks and rewards
incidental to ownership are retained by the lessors are classiﬁed as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessors) are recognised in income and expenditure on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

2.9 Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already
been recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is
probable that future economic beneﬁts associated with the item will ﬂow to the
Agency and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate depreciable
amounts over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Useful lives
Furniture and ﬁttings

8 years

Ofﬁce equipment

5 years

Computer equipment

3 to 5 years

Acquired computer software
Acquired computer software are initially capitalised at cost which includes the
purchase price (net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributable
cost of preparing the asset for its intended use. Costs associated with maintaining
the computer software are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Computer software are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised to income and
expenditure using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of three
to ﬁve years.
No amortisation is charged on assets under development.
The amortisation period and amortisation method of the intangible assets are
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The effects of
any revision are recognised in income and expenditure when the changes arise.

No depreciation is charged on construction-in-progress.
The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognised in income and expenditure
when the changes arise.
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-ﬁnancial assets

2.11 Bank balances
Trade and other receivables

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever there is any indication that these assets may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised as
an impairment loss in income and expenditure.
An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of this asset is increased
to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss for an asset is recognised in
income and expenditure.

Bank balances and trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction cost and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less accumulated impairment losses.
The Agency assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence
that these ﬁnancial assets are impaired and recognises an allowance for impairment
when such evidence exists. Signiﬁcant ﬁnancial difﬁculties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default or signiﬁcant delay in payments are
objective evidence that these ﬁnancial assets are impaired.
The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an impairment
allowance account which is calculated as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash ﬂows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

2.12 Other payables
Other payables are initially recognised at their fair values, and subsequently carried
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
2.13 Provisions
Provisions for other liabilities and charges are recognised when the Agency has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely
than not that an outﬂow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount has been reliably estimated.
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. OPERATING INCOME

2.14 Cash and bank deposits
Cash and bank deposits include cash on hand, deposits with ﬁnancial
institutions which are subject to an insigniﬁcant risk of change in value and
deposits held at call with a central Government agency.
2.15 Fair value estimation of ﬁnancial assets and liabilities
The fair values of current ﬁnancial assets and liabilities carried at amortised
cost approximate their carrying amounts.

2010

2009

$

$

1,111,500

819,883

210,907

147,123

Course fees

1,740,622

254,898

Total operating income

3,063,029

1,221,904

Workers’ assessment fees
Application fees

2.16 Contribution to Consolidated Fund
The contribution to the Consolidated Fund is required under Section 3(a) of
the Statutory Corporations (Contribution to Consolidated Fund) Act (Cap.
319A). The contribution is pegged at the prevailing statutory income tax rate
for corporate bodies.
Accounting surplus would be used for the purpose of computing the
Contribution and this is accounted for on an accrual basis.
2.17 Currency translation
The ﬁnancial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar, which is the
functional currency of the Agency.

4. OTHER INCOME

Interest income from short-term bank deposits
Rental income
Other
Total other income

2010

2009

$

$

77,293

215,979

-

1,504,347

5,542

4,640

82,835

1,724,966

Transactions in a currency other than Singapore Dollar (“foreign currency”)
are translated into Singapore Dollar using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Currency translation differences resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the closing rates at the
balance sheet date are recognised in income and expenditure.
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

5. OTHER GAINS - NET

7. GRANTS FROM THE GOVERNMENT

Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

2010

2009

$

$

56,586

-

Wages and salaries

2010

2009

$

$

33,533,522

25,509,399

Employer’s contribution to
Central Provident Fund

4,064,225

3,150,124

Staff training and beneﬁts

609,605

939,218

38,207,352

29,598,741

2009

$

$

Government grants :
- Manpower Development Assistance Scheme
(“MDAS”) (Note 15)

-

- Centre for Employability Skills (“CES”) (Note 15)

6. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

2010

- Institute of Adult Learning (“IAL”) (Note 15)
- Skills Programme for Upgrading and Resilience
(“SPUR”) (Note 15)
- Operating grants (Note 15)
Amortisation of deferred Government capital
grants (Note 16)

48,150

146

-

6,584,052

3,126,664

137,130,000

-

47,245,085

40,965,605

190,959,283

44,140,419

1,859,682

642,498

192,818,965

44,782,917

Included in employee compensation is key management’s remuneration as follows:
2010
$
Wages and salaries
Employer’s contribution to
Central Provident Fund

2009
$

4,260,521

3,285,926

167,717

165,192

4,428,238

3,451,118

Key management refers to employees designated as Directors and above who have
the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Agency.
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8. CONTRIBUTION TO CONSOLIDATED FUND
The Agency is exempted from Singapore Income Tax under Section 13(1)(e) of the
Income Tax Act.
The contribution to the Consolidated Fund is required under Section 3(a) of the
Statutory Corporations (Contributions to Consolidated Fund) Act (Cap. 319A).
The contribution is based on the prevailing statutory corporate income tax rate of
17% (2009: 18%) on any surplus before contribution to Consolidated Fund for the
ﬁnancial year.
There is no contribution for the ﬁnancial years ended 31 March 2010 and 31 March
2009 as the Agency is in a net deﬁcit position for both years.
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

9. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

11. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Cash at bank and on hand
Deposits at call held with the Ministry of Finance,
Accountant-General’s Department
Short-term bank deposits

2010

2009

2010

2009

$

$

$

$

1,624,353

6,239,921

Deposits
Prepayments

8,401,915

7,411,404

16,600,000

21,280,000

26,626,268

34,931,325

1,232,497

1,141,054

617,079

275,042

1,849,576

1,416,096

Deposits with the Ministry of Finance, Accountant-General’s Department are noninterest bearing.
The short-term bank ﬁxed deposits have an average maturity of 3 months (2009: 3
months) from the end of the ﬁnancial year with a weighted average effective interest
rate of 0.29% (2009: 0.37%) per annum.

10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2010

2009

$

$

Trade receivables

313,430

239,285

Other receivables

326,645

2,539,652

640,075

2,778,937
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Furniture
and ﬁttings

Ofﬁce
equipment

Computer
equipment

Constructionin-progress

Total

Furniture
and ﬁttings

Ofﬁce
equipment

Computer
equipment

Constructionin-progress

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

2010

2009

Cost
Beginning of ﬁnancial year

Cost
5,616,537

931,262

2,283,837

38,700

8,870,336

Beginning of ﬁnancial year

Additions

100,591

13,064

114,373

1,229,026

1,457,054

Additions

Reclassiﬁcations

911,208

34,807

-

(946,015)

-

(136,390)

(11,600)

(739,909)

-

(887,899)

6,491,946

967,533

1,658,301

321,711

9,439,491

Disposals
End of ﬁnancial year

4,164,578

842,937

1,945,657

-

6,953,172

320,609

28,693

250,405

1,317,457

1,917,164

Reclassiﬁcations

1,131,350

59,632

87,775

(1,278,757)

-

End of ﬁnancial year

5,616,537

931,262

2,283,837

38,700

8,870,336

1,689,440

591,748

1,656,535

-

3,937,723

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of ﬁnancial year

Beginning of ﬁnancial year
2,300,420

761,604

Depreciation charge

723,462

68,053

202,490

Disposals

(17,420)

(6,567)

(662,521)

3,006,462

823,090

1,451,183

-

5,280,735

End of ﬁnancial year

1,911,214

-

4,973,238

Depreciation charge

610,980

169,856

254,679

-

1,035,515

-

994,005

End of ﬁnancial year

2,300,420

761,604

1,911,214

-

4,973,238

-

(686,508)
3,316,117

169,658

372,623

38,700

3,897,098

Net book value
End of ﬁnancial year

Net book value
End of ﬁnancial year

3,485,484
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207,118

321,711

4,158,756
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13. INTANGIBLES ASSETS

13. INTANGIBLES ASSETS (continued)

2010

Computer
software

Assets under
development

Total

$

$

$

2009

Cost

Computer
software

Assets under
development

Total

$

$

$

Cost

Beginning of ﬁnancial year

435,396

4,896,639

5,332,035

Beginning of ﬁnancial year

285,143

2,444,266

2,729,409

Additions

140,102

2,891,417

3,031,519

Additions

60,291

2,542,335

2,602,626

Reclassiﬁcations

6,645,164

(6,645,164)

-

Reclassiﬁcations

89,962

(89,962)

-

End of ﬁnancial year

7,220,662

1,142,892

8,363,554

435,396

4,896,639

5,332,035

234,801

-

234,801

141,419

-

141,419

Amortisation charge

1,015,318

-

1,015,318

Amortisation charge

93,382

-

93,382

End of ﬁnancial year

1,250,119

-

1,250,119

End of ﬁnancial year

234,801

-

234,801

200,595

4,896,639

5,097,234

Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of ﬁnancial year

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value
End of ﬁnancial year

End of ﬁnancial year

Beginning of ﬁnancial year

Net book value
5,970,543

Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements

1,142,892

7,113,435
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14. OTHER PAYABLES

15. GOVERNMENT GRANTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE (continued)
2010

2009

$

$

(b) Movements in Government grants received in advance

Other payables

2,928,209

3,011,412

MDAS

NSRS

CES

IAL

SPUR

Operating
grants

Total

Accrued operating expenses

5,030,525

4,286,684

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

234,038

156,707

8,192,772

7,454,803

Advance receipts

2010
Balance at the beginning of ﬁnancial year
Grants received in the ﬁnancial year

5,879,636

42,000

2,448,625

1,222,381

-

-

9,592,642

-

-

238,227

8,394,401

137,130,000

50,550,000

196,312,628

5,879,636

42,000

2,686,852

9,616,782

137,130,000

50,550,000

205,905,270

15. GOVERNMENT GRANTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE
(a) Government grants received in advance for:
2010

2009

$

$

- Manpower Development Assistance Scheme
(“MDAS”)

-

5,879,636

- National Skills Recognition System (“NSRS”)

42,000

42,000

- Centre for Employability Skills (“CES”)

2,454,066

2,448,625

- Institute of Adult Learning (“IAL”)

2,082,936

1,222,381

4,579,002

9,592,642
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Transfer to income and expenditure (Note 7)

-

-

(146)

(6,584,052)

(137,130,000)

(47,245,085)

(190,959,283)

Transfer to deferred capital grants (Note 16)

-

-

(232,640)

(949,794)

-

(3,304,915)

(4,487,349)

(5,879,636)

-

-

-

-

-

(5,879,636)

(5,879,636)

-

(232,786)

(7,533,846)

(137,130,000)

(50,550,000)

(201,326,268)

-

42,000

2,454,066

2,082,936

-

-

4,579,002

Unutilised grant returned to Government

Balance at the end of ﬁnancial year
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15. GOVERNMENT GRANTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE (continued)

15. GOVERNMENT GRANTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE (continued)

(b) Movements in Government grants received in advance (continued)

Manpower Development Assistance Scheme

MDAS

NSRS

CES

IAL

SPUR

Operating
grants

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

5,655,832

42,000

2,532,420

-

-

109,320

8,339,572

720,520

-

16,805

5,848,383

-

43,776,090

50,361,798

6,376,352

42,000

2,549,225

5,848,383

-

43,885,410

58,701,370

Transfer to income and expenditure (Note 7)

(48,150)

-

-

(3,126,664)

-

(40,965,605)

(44,140,419)

Transfer to deferred capital grants (Note 16)

-

-

(100,600)

(1,499,338)

-

(2,919,805)

(4,519,743)

(448,566)

-

-

-

-

-

(448,566)

(496,716)

-

(100,600)

(4,626,002)

-

(43,885,410)

(49,108,728)

5,879,636

42,000

2,448,625

1,222,381

-

-

9,592,642

2009
Balance at the beginning of ﬁnancial year
Grants received in the ﬁnancial year

Unutilised grant returned to Government

Balance at the end of ﬁnancial year

The Manpower Development Assistance Scheme (“MDAS”) was set up in February
2000 with a Government commitment of $200 million over 5 years, from FY2000
to FY2004. It is targeted at industry-wide initiatives aimed at enhancing workforce
capabilities through the Workforce Development Programmes, National Skills
Recognition System (“NSRS”) and Learning Infrastructure Development. A cashﬂow
extension was further approved to fund programmes committed before FY2004 and
lasted till FY2008. Consequently, unutilised funds were returned to the Ministry of
Manpower (“MOM”) in June 2009 and February 2010.
National Skills Recognition System
The National Skills Recognition System (“NSRS”) is a national framework for
establishing work performance standards, identifying job competencies and
certifying skills acquisition. The programme is funded by MDAS up to FY2004. It
has since been funded by the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund (“LLEF”) from
FY2005. In FY2005, the programme ended. The unutilised funds will be returned
in June 2010.
Centre for Employability Skills
In November 1998, the Bukit Merah Skills Development Centre (“BMSDC”) was
established as part of the off-budget measure to offer full-time training facilities for
workers and to expand training resources for companies in Singapore. In 2007,
the centre was repositioned into a Centre for Employability Skills (“CES”) which
co-ordinates and delivers courses, appraises and assesses workers’ and trainees’
skills and provides facilities for organisations to operate training and administer
Employability Skills System and Workforce Skills Qualiﬁcation. The balance amount
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15. GOVERNMENT GRANTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE (continued)

16. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT CAPITAL GRANTS

from the former BMSDC was transferred by the Institute of Technical Education
to the Agency. The centre manager was Nanyang Polytechnic ("NYP") in FY2005
and FY2006. In FY2007, WDA took over the assessment function from NYP while
appointing Employment and Employability Institute (“e2i”) as managing agent of
the premises for a period of 2 years from 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2009. WDA
has since relinquished the Temporary Occupation Licence for the premises with
effect from 1 April 2009 and e2i has taken over the lease of the premises while
the assessment function still remains with WDA. Other operating costs of CES are
funded by the operating grant.
Institute for Adult Learning
Institute for Adult Learning (IAL) was set up as a Division of the Agency in April 2008
as part of the CET Master Plan approved by the Cabinet in December 2007. It is
set up as a “Centre for Adult Pedagogy” to ensure high quality CET practices and
research among adult educators. The set up and operation of IAL is fully funded
by the LLEF.
Skills Programme for Upgrading and Resilience
Skills Programme for Upgrading and Resilience (“SPUR”) is a 2-year programme
that started from 1 December 2008 to help companies and workers manage
the economic downturn and invest in skills for the recovery. To complement
WDA’s existing funds in implementing SPUR, the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”)
has committed to providing WDA additional funds for SPUR programmes. The
objectives of SPUR are to help companies manage excess manpower and reduce
retrenchment, help local workers, including those retrenched, upgrade skills and
convert to new jobs and strengthen the country’s manpower capabilities to better
position the workforce for the upturn. The restricted fund for SPUR relates to the
additional budget provided by the MOM to support the SPUR programme.
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2010
$

2009
$

At beginning of ﬁnancial year

8,088,383

4,211,138

Transferred from Government grants received
(Note 15)

4,487,349

4,519,743

12,575,732

8,730,881

Amortisation of deferred Government capital
grants (Note 7)

(1,859,682)

(642,498)

At end of ﬁnancial year

10,716,050

8,088,383

17. SHARE CAPITAL
The Agency’s share capital comprise fully paid up shares 1,000 (2009: 1,000) shares
with no par value, amounting to a total of $1,000 (2009: $1,000).
In the prior ﬁnancial year, the Agency issued 1,000 shares to the Minister for Finance,
a body corporate incorporated by the Minister for Finance (Incorporation) Act
(Chapter 183), for a cash consideration of $1,000 as capital injection in accordance
with Financial Circular Minute No FC M26/2008 - Capital Management Framework.
The shares carry neither voting rights nor par value.
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18.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME - RESTRICTED FUNDS
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NSRS

CES

IAL

SPUR

Total

2010

2009

2010

2009

2010

2009

2010

2009

2010

2009

2010

2009

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Operating Income

-

-

-

-

-

187,296

1,755,622

254,898

-

-

1,755,622

442,194

Other income

-

-

-

-

364

1,515,910

2,190

7,587

-

-

2,554

1,523,497

Other losses - net

-

-

-

-

(1,085)

-

(30,576)

-

-

-

(31,661)

-

- Amortisation of intangible assets

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

-

-

-

-

(35,930)

(36,770)

(270,824)

(135,349)

-

-

(306,754)

(172,119)

- Employee compensation

-

-

-

-

-

-

(3,434,160)

(1,454,816)

-

-

(3,434,160)

(1,454,816)

- Grant disbursements

-

(48,150)

-

-

-

-

(249,670)

-

(137,130,000)

-

(137,379,670)

(48,150)

- Rental expenses on operating leases

-

-

-

-

-

-

(378,557)

(190,519)

-

-

(378,557)

(190,519)

- Professional services

-

-

-

-

500

(7,500)

(78,039)

(244,573)

-

-

(77,539)

(252,073)

- Maintenance expenses

-

-

-

-

(9,310)

(490,232)

(311,871)

(187,548)

-

-

(321,181)

(677,780)

- Supplies and materials

-

-

-

-

(1,843)

(366,455)

(776,341)

(790,324)

-

-

(778,184)

(1,156,779)

- Public relations

-

-

-

-

-

-

(173,381)

(52,586)

-

-

(173,381)

(52,586)

- Travel expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

(18,966)

(7,031)

-

-

(18,966)

(7,031)

- Agency fee paid to Central Provident Board

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- GST expenses

-

-

-

-

4,725

(4,725)

(119,857)

(53,726)

-

-

(115,132)

(58,451)

- Temporary staff cost

-

-

-

-

-

-

(283,666)

(46,909)

-

-

(283,666)

(46,909)

- Course-related trainer’s fees

-

-

-

-

-

-

(2,208,057)

(278,190)

-

-

(2,208,057)

(278,190)

- Others

-

-

-

-

(525)

(759)

(297,287)

(82,669)

-

-

(297,812)

(83,428)

-

(48,150)

-

-

(42,383)

(906,441)

(8,600,676)

(3,524,240)

(137,130,000)

-

(145,773,059)

(4,478,831)

(Deﬁcit)/Surplus before Government grants

-

(48,150)

-

-

(43,104)

796,765

(6,873,440)

(3,261,755)

(137,130,000)

-

(144,046,544)

(2,513,140)

Grants from the Government

-

48,150

-

-

137,291

1,720

6,873,440

3,261,755

137,130,000

-

144,140,731

3,311,625

Surplus before contribution to Consolidated Fund

-

-

-

-

94,187

798,485

-

-

-

-

94,187

798,485

Contribution to Consolidated Fund

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Net surplus for the ﬁnancial year

-

-

-

-

94,187

798,485

-

-

-

-

94,187

798,485

Accumulated surplus brought forward

-

-

-

-

1,042,880

244,395

-

-

-

-

1,042,880

244,395

Accumulated surplus carried forward

-

-

-

-

1,137,067

1,042,880

-

-

-

-

1,137,067

1,042,880

Less: Expenditure
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19. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND

19. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND (continued)

The Skills Development Fund (“the SDF”) was established in the Republic of
Singapore on 1 October 1979 as a Government fund under the Skills Development
Levy Act (Cap. 306). With effect from 1 September 2003, the administration of the
SDF was transferred from the Ministry of Manpower (“MOM”) to the Agency.

The statement of comprehensive income and balance sheet of the SDF that is
administered by the Agency for the ﬁnancial year ended are as follows:
(a) Statement of comprehensive income

The SDF is established for the following purposes:
(i) the promotion, development and upgrading of skills and expertise of persons
preparing to join the workforce, persons in the workforce and persons rejoining
the workforce;

Other income - interest income
Fair value gains/(losses)

(iii) the provision of ﬁnancial assistance by grants, loans or otherwise for the abovementioned purposes.

2009
(restated)

$

$

163,439,684

146,043,074

6,094,773

9,942,743

Income
Operating income - skills development levy

(ii) the retraining of retrenched persons; and

2010

19,829,218

(8,089,201)

189,363,675

147,896,616

(72,138,516)

(80,540,600)

3,202,578

1,886,835

(24,767)

-

Total expenditure

(68,960,705)

(78,653,765)

Net surplus and total comprehensive income
for the ﬁnancial year

120,402,970

69,242,851

Less:
Expenditure
Disbursements
Less: Disbursement refunds
Bad Debts written off
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19. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND (continued)

19. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND (continued)

(b) Balance sheet
2010
$

2009
(restated)

2008
(restated)

$

$

Accumulated surplus at end of ﬁnancial year

162,826,289

42,423,319

(26,819,532)

Capital account

871,138,696

871,138,696

871,138,696

1,033,964,985

913,562,015

844,319,164

684,838,269

535,706,695

542,968,672

During the current ﬁnancial year, the SDF reclassiﬁed its capital protected
investments from held-to-maturity ﬁnancial assets to ﬁnancial assets at fair value
through proﬁt or loss.
The ﬁnancial statements for the ﬁnancial years ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March
2009 have been restated to reﬂect the above change.

Represented by:
Current assets
Cash and bank deposits
Levy and other receivables
Financial assets, held-to-maturity

3,450,955

3,343,064

4,536,607

62,297,660

46,975,538

63,544,687

750,586,884

586,025,297

611,049,966

260,140,017

240,310,799

98,400,000

24,238,579

87,896,370

136,148,123

284,378,596

328,207,169

234,548,123

1,034,965,480

914,232,466

845,598,089

(1,000,495)

(670,451)

(1,278,925)

1,033,964,985

913,562,015

844,319,164

Non-current assets
Financial assets, at fair value through proﬁt or loss
Financial assets, held-to-maturity

Total assets

Current liabilities
Payables

Net assets
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20. LIFELONG LEARNING ENDOWMENT FUND

20. LIFELONG LEARNING ENDOWMENT FUND (continued)

The Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund (“LLEF”) is set up by the Singapore
Government under the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund Act, Cap.162A for the
acquisition of skills and expertise by persons and the development and upgrading
of skills and expertise of persons to enhance their employability; and the promotion
of the acquisition, development and upgrading of skills and expertise to enhance
the employability of persons.
The Agency has been appointed by MOM as the administrator of the LLEF to
receive and deploy the grant for programmes that are congruent with the objectives
of the LLEF.

The statement of comprehensive income and balance sheet of the LLEF that is
administered by the Agency for the ﬁnancial year ended are as follows:
(a) Statement of comprehensive income
2010

2009

$

$

Receipts
Refund of unused grant from programme managers

3,434,507

1,448,665

1,116

1,245

3,435,623

1,449,910

(132,854,857)

(87,424,376)

(1,717,702)

(5,944,873)

(50)

-

Total expenditure

(134,572,609)

(93,369,249)

Deﬁcit before grant

(131,136,986)

(91,919,339)

130,408,000

95,982,000

(Deﬁcit)/surplus for the ﬁnancial year

(728,986)

4,062,661

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the ﬁnancial year

(728,986)

4,062,661

Interest income

Less:
Expenditure
Grants disbursed
Marketing and promotion expenses
Administrative expenses

Grants received

Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements

Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements

46

47

SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

20. LIFELONG LEARNING ENDOWMENT FUND (continued)

21. SKILLS REDEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

4,671,476

5,400,462

The Skills Redevelopment Programme (the “SRP”) is a national programme to
help re-develop the skills of our workers and enhance their employability through
certiﬁable skills training and upgrading. Under the SRP, companies can claim
absentee payroll funding to defray manpower costs incurred when they send their
employees (who are Singapore Citizens or Permanent Residents of Singapore) for
approved training courses. The SRP was managed by the National Trades Union
Congress (“NTUC”) up to 31 December 2006. With effect from 1 January 2007,
the administration of the SRP was transferred from NTUC to the Agency. The
programme was funded by MDAS up to 31 March 2009. With effect from 1 April
2009, the programme is funded by the LLEF.

5,670,630

5,940,997

60,202

-

The statement of comprehensive income and balance sheet of the SRP that is
administered by the Agency for the ﬁnancial year ended are as follows:

5,730,832

5,940,997

(b) Balance sheet

Accumulated surplus at end of ﬁnancial year

2010

2009

$

$

Represented by:
Current assets
Cash and bank deposits
Other current assets

(a) Statement of comprehensive income

Current liabilities
Payables
Net assets

(1,059,356)

(540,535)

4,671,476

5,400,462

Income

2010

2009

$

$
-

-

(29,761,784)

(11,938,398)

Less
The ﬁnancial statements of the LLEF are prepared by MOM on a cash basis and
audited by another ﬁrm of auditors.

Expenditure
Grants disbursed

(30,069)

(36,655)

Total expenditure

Administrative expenses

(29,791,853)

(11,975,053)

Deﬁcit before grants

(29,791,853)

(11,975,053)

35,297,198

-

(16,113,938)

-

19,183,260

-

(10,608,593)

(11,975,053)

Grants received from LLEF
Grants returned to MOM

Deﬁcit and total comprehensive loss
for the ﬁnancial year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

21. SKILLS REDEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME (continued)

22. COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

(b) Balance sheet

Accumulated surplus at end of ﬁnancial year

2010

2009

$

$

5,505,364

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised in
the ﬁnancial statements were analysed as follows:

16,113,957
2010

2009

$

$

Property, plant and equipment

389,851

88,538

Intangible assets

744,667

859,483

1,134,518

948,021

Represented by:
Current assets
Cash and bank deposits
Receivables

-

12,422,368

5,505,364

3,766,027

5,505,364

16,188,395

-

(74,438)

5,505,364

16,113,957

Current liabilities
Payables
Net assets
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For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

22. COMMITMENTS (continued)

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(b) Operating lease commitments

Financial risk factors

The Agency leases ofﬁce premises and equipment under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The leases typically run for 1 to 5 years with an option to renew
the lease after that period. Lease payments are usually increased annually to reﬂect
market rentals.

The Agency is subject to market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk) and credit risk.

The future minimum lease payable under non-cancellable operating leases
contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised as liabilities are as
follows:
2010
$
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

2009
$

5,637,524

4,793,117

19,346,250

17,027,207

424,594

4,109,648

25,408,368

25,929,972

The Agency recognises that management of ﬁnancial risk is an important aspect
to discharge its regulatory functions, objects and duties under the Singapore
Workforce Development Agency Act, Cap. 305D. The Agency has adopted risk
management practices to mitigate these risks in a cost effective manner.
The Agency does not hold or issue derivative ﬁnancial instruments for trading
purposes or to hedge against ﬂuctuations, if any, in interest rates and foreign
exchange.
(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a ﬁnancial instrument will ﬂuctuate
due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Agency’s operations are not exposed to signiﬁcant foreign currency
risks as its transactions as well as its assets and liabilities are predominantly
denominated in Singapore Dollar.
(ii) Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of a ﬁnancial instrument will ﬂuctuate due
to changes in market prices whether those changes are caused by factors
speciﬁc to the individual security or its issuer or factors affecting all securities
traded in the market.
The Agency is not exposed to price risk as it does not hold any equity ﬁnancial
assets.
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For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Cash ﬂow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial
instrument will ﬂuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a ﬁnancial instrument will
ﬂuctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Agency has cash balances placed with reputable banks and ﬁnancial
institutions and has limited exposure to interest rate risk as variable rate
interest-bearing assets are mainly of a short-term nature. The Agency
manages its interest rate risk by placing such balances on varying maturities
and interest rate terms.
(b) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in ﬁnancial loss to the Agency.

(i) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits
held with a central Government agency, and ﬁnancial institutions which have
high credit-ratings as determined by international credit-rating agencies.
(ii) Financial assets that are past due and/or impaired
There is no other class of ﬁnancial assets that is past due and/or impaired
except for trade and other receivables.
The age analysis of trade and other receivables past due but not impaired is
as follows:
2010

2009

$

$

The Agency’s major classes of ﬁnancial assets are bank deposits and trade and
other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of ﬁnancial
assets is the carrying amount of that class of ﬁnancial instruments presented on
the balance sheet.

Past due < 3 months

174,405

92,194

Past due 3 to 4 months

2,867

240

The credit risk for trade and other receivables based on the information provided
to key management is as follows:

Past due over 4 months

34,291

9,630

211,563

102,064

By types of customers
- Government *
- Individuals
- Other companies

2010

2009

$

$

167,770

145,453

274

7,361

472,031

2,626,123

640,075

2,778,937

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables is not impaired.

* Government includes Statutory Boards and Government agencies.
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23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Capital risk
The Agency’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Agency
is adequately capitalised and that it fulﬁlls the objects for which monies of the
Agency may be applied under the Singapore Workforce Development Agency
Act, Cap. 305D. The Agency deﬁnes capital as its equity and deferred capital
grants.
The Agency is not subject to any capital requirements under the Singapore
Workforce Development Agency Act, Cap. 305D nor any other externally
imposed capital requirements.

24. NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have
been published and are mandatory for the Agency’s accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2010 or later periods and which the Agency has not early
adopted. The Agency does not expect that adoption of these accounting standards
or interpretations will have a material impact on the Agency’s ﬁnancial statements.

25. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These ﬁnancial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution
of the Board of Directors of Singapore Workforce Development Agency on 15 July
2010.

Singapore Workforce Development Agency Financial Statements

asdfghjkl;'

105

1

CONTENT
Independent Auditor’s Report

2

Statement of Comprehensive Income

4

Balance Sheet

5

Statement of Changes in Capital and Accumulated Surplus /(Deﬁcit)

7

Cash Flow Statement

8

Notes to the Financial Statements

9

SKILLS
DEVELOPMENT
FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

asdsadsaasdsadasdasd

Skills Development Fund Financial Statements

2

3

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SINGAPORE
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
We have audited the accompanying ﬁnancial statements of the Skills Development Fund
(“SDF”) set out on pages 4 to 29, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March
2010, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in capital and
accumulated surplus/(deﬁcit) and cash ﬂow statement for the ﬁnancial year then ended,
and a summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The SDF
is administered by the Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”).

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

WDA'S MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

WDA’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
ﬁnancial statements in accordance with the provisions of the Skills Development Levy
Act, Cap.306 (the “Act”) and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS”).
This responsibility includes:

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by WDA’s management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the ﬁnancial
statements.

OPINION
In our opinion:

(a) designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of ﬁnancial statements that are free from material misstatement
whether due to fraud or error;
(b) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

(a) the ﬁnancial statements of the SDF are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the SDF as at 31 March 2010, and
of the results, changes in capital and accumulated surplus/(deﬁcit) and cash ﬂows of
the SDF for the ﬁnancial year ended on that date; and

(c) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the SDF have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these ﬁnancial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the ﬁnancial statements are free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the ﬁnancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the ﬁnancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
ﬁnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
Skills Development Fund Financial Statements

During the course of our audit, nothing came to our notice that caused us to believe that
the receipts, expenditure and investments of monies and the acquisition and disposal
of assets by the SDF during the ﬁnancial year have not been in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Public Accountants and Certiﬁed Public Accountants
Singapore, 15 July 2010
Skills Development Fund Financial Statements
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BALANCE SHEET

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

As at 31 March 2010

Note

2010

2009
(restated)

$

$

Note

Operating income

3

163,439,684

146,043,074

Other income

3

6,094,773

9,942,743

2010

2009
(restated)

2008
(restated)

$

$

$

ASSETS
Current assets

Fair value gains/(losses)
- Financial assets, at fair value through proﬁt or loss

19,829,218

(8,089,201)

4

684,838,269

535,706,695

542,968,672

Levy and other receivables

5

3,450,955

3,343,064

4,536,607

Financial assets, held-to-maturity

7

62,297,660

46,975,538

63,544,687

750,586,884

586,025,297

611,049,966

Non-current assets

Expenditure
- Disbursements

(72,138,516)

(80,540,600)

3,202,578

1,886,835

(68,935,938)

(78,653,765)

(24,767)

-

Total expenditure

(68,960,705)

(78,653,765)

Net surplus for the ﬁnancial year/Total comprehensive income

120,402,970

69,242,851

- Less: Disbursement refunds

- Bad debts written off

Financial assets, at fair value through proﬁt or loss

6

260,140,017

240,310,799

98,400,000

Financial assets, held-to-maturity

7

24,238,579

87,896,370

136,148,123

284,378,596

328,207,169

234,548,123

1,034,965,480

914,232,466

845,598,089

Total assets

MR CHAN HENG KEE

MS SHARON TAN

MR CHAN HENG KEE

MS SHARON TAN

Chief Executive
Singapore Workforce
Development Agency

Director
Financial and Administration
Singapore Workforce
Development Agency

Chief Executive
Singapore Workforce
Development Agency

Director
Financial and Administration
Singapore Workforce
Development Agency
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BALANCE SHEET

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

As at 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010
Note

2010

2009
(restated)

2008
(restated)

$

$

$

LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Capital
account*

Accumulated
surplus/(deﬁcit)

Total

$

$

$

2010

Current liabilities
Payables

Note

Beginning of ﬁnancial year (restated)
8

1,000,495

670,451

1,278,925

1,033,964,985

913,562,015

844,319,164

Total comprehensive income
for the ﬁnancial year

End of ﬁnancial year

Represented by:
Capital account

871,138,696

871,138,696

871,138,696

Accumulated surplus/(deﬁcit)

162,826,289

42,423,319

(26,819,532)

2009

1,033,964,985

913,562,015

844,319,164

Beginning of ﬁnancial year
- As previously reported
- Prior year adjustment

11

- As restated

871,138,696

42,423,319

913,562,015

-

120,402,970

120,402,970

871,138,696

162,826,289

1,033,964,985

871,138,696

(25,219,532)

845,919,164

-

(1,600,000)

(1,600,000)

871,138,696

(26,819,532)

844,319,164

-

77,332,052

77,332,052

-

(8,089,201)

(8,089,201)

-

69,242,851

69,242,851

871,138,696

42,423,319

913,562,015

Total comprehensive income
for the ﬁnancial year
- As previously reported
- Prior year adjustment

11

- As restated

MR CHAN HENG KEE

MS SHARON TAN

Chief Executive
Singapore Workforce
Development Agency

Director
Financial and Administration
Singapore Workforce
Development Agency
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End of ﬁnancial year (restated)

* The capital account represents the Government’s capital contribution for the establishment of the Skills
Development Fund.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
ﬁnancial statements.
Note

2010

2009
(restated)

$

$

Cash ﬂows from operating activities
Net surplus for the ﬁnancial year

120,402,970

69,242,851

(19,829,218)

8,089,201

(6,047,674)

(9,942,743)

94,526,078

67,389,309

- Levy and other receivables

(43,008)

(511,602)

- Payables

330,044

(401,270)

94,813,114

66,476,437

-

(150,000,000)

47,000,000

63,000,000

7,318,460

13,261,586

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

54,318,460

(73,738,414)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and bank deposits

149,131,574

(7,261,977)

Adjustments for:
- Fair value (gains)/losses
- Interest income

Change in working capital

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash ﬂows from investing activities
Purchase of capital protected investment
Proceeds from maturity of bonds
Interest received

Cash and bank deposits at beginning of ﬁnancial year

4

535,706,695

542,968,672

Cash and bank deposits at end of ﬁnancial year

4

684,838,269

535,706,695

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
The Skills Development Fund (the “SDF”) was established in the Republic of
Singapore on 1 October 1979 as a Government fund under the Skills Development
Levy Act (Chapter 306). With effect from 1 September 2003, the administration of
the SDF was transferred from the Ministry of Manpower (“MOM”) to the Singapore
Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”).
The SDF is established for the following purposes:
(a) the promotion, development and upgrading of skills and expertise of persons
preparing to join the workforce, persons in the workforce and persons rejoining
the workforce;
(b) the retraining of retrenched persons; and
(c) the provision of ﬁnancial assistance by grants, loans or otherwise for the abovementioned purposes.
The SDF which is administered by WDA is exempted from income tax under Section
13(1)(e) of the Income Tax Act.
The address of the registered ofﬁce and principal place of operations of the SDF is
No.1 Marina Boulevard #16-01, One Marina Boulevard, Singapore 018989.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1

Basis of preparation
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statutory
Board Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS”), established by the
Accountant-General. The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared under the
historical convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1

s !MENDMENT TO 3" &23  )MPROVING $ISCLOSURES ABOUT &INANCIAL
Statements (effective from 1 January 2009). The amendment requires
enhanced disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. In
particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair value measurements by
level of a fair value measurement hierarchy. The adoption of the amendment
results in additional disclosures (Note 10(d)), but does not have an impact
on the accounting policies and measurement bases adopted by the SDF.

The preparation of these ﬁnancial statements in conformity with SB-FRS
requires WDA’s management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the SDF’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and assumptions.
Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2009
On 1 April 2009, the Agency adopted the new or amended SB-FRS that are
mandatory for application from that date. Changes to the SDF’s accounting
policies have been made as required, in accordance with the relevant transition
provisions in the respective SB-FRS and INT SB-FRS.
s 3" &23  REVISED 0RESENTATION OF lNANCIAL STATEMENTS EFFECTIVE FROM 
January 2009). The revised standard prohibits the presentation of items
of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the
statement of changes in capital and accumulated surplus/(deﬁcit). All nonowner changes in equity are shown in a performance statement, but entities
can choose whether to present one performance statement (the statement
of comprehensive income) or two statements (the income statement and
statement of comprehensive income). The SDF has chosen to adopt the
former alternative. Where comparative information is restated or reclassiﬁed,
a restated balance sheet is required to be presented as at the beginning
comparative period. A restated balance sheet has been presented for 1
April 2008 due to the reclassiﬁcation of capital protected investments which
were previously classiﬁed as held-to-maturity ﬁnancial assets. These have
been re-classiﬁed as ﬁnancial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss as a
result of subsequent clariﬁcation of the application of SB-FRS 39.

Skills Development Fund Financial Statements

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.2

Income recognition
(a) Skills development levy
Income from Skills Development Levy is recognised on an accrual basis.
(b) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Skills Development Fund Financial Statements

12

13

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Financial assets
(a) Classiﬁcation
The SDF classiﬁes its ﬁnancial assets in the following categories:
Financial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss, loans and receivables
and ﬁnancial assets held-to-maturity. The classiﬁcation depends on
the purpose for which the assets were acquired. WDA’s management
determines the classiﬁcation of the ﬁnancial assets at initial recognition.
(i) Financial assets, at fair value through proﬁt or loss
Financial assets designated as at fair value through proﬁt or loss at
inception are those that are managed and their performances are
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
investment strategy. Assets in this category are presented as current
assets if they are expected to be realised within 12 months after the
balance sheet date.
(ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative ﬁnancial assets with ﬁxed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than
12 months after the balance sheet date which are presented as noncurrent assets. Loans and receivables are presented as “levy and other
receivables” and “cash and bank deposits” on the balance sheet.

2.3

Financial assets (continued)
(a) Classiﬁcation (continued)
(iii) Financial assets, held-to-maturity
Financial assets, held-to-maturity, are non-derivative ﬁnancial assets
with ﬁxed or determinable payments and ﬁxed maturities that the
WDA’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the SDF were to sell other than an insigniﬁcant amount of
held-to-maturity ﬁnancial assets, the whole category would be tainted
and reclassiﬁed as available-for-sale. They are presented as noncurrent assets, except for those maturing within 12 months after the
balance sheet date which are presented as current assets.
(b) Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of ﬁnancial assets are recognised on
trade-date – the date on which the SDF commits to purchase or sell the
asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash ﬂows
from the ﬁnancial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
SDF has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On
disposal of a ﬁnancial asset, the difference between the carrying amount
and the sale proceeds is recognised in income and expenditure.
(c) Measurement
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
except for ﬁnancial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss, which are
recognised at fair value. Transaction costs for ﬁnancial assets at fair value
through proﬁt or loss are recognised immediately as expenses.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Financial assets (continued)

2.4

(c) Measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and ﬁnancial assets, held-tomaturity are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Payables are initially recognised at their fair values, and subsequently carried
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
2.5

Transactions in a currency other than Singapore Dollar (“foreign currency”)
are translated into Singapore Dollar using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Currency translation differences resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the closing rates at the
balance sheet date are recognised in income and expenditure.

(d) Impairment

Loans and receivables/ﬁnancial assets, held-to-maturity
Signiﬁcant ﬁnancial difﬁculties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy, and default or signiﬁcant delay in payments are
objective evidence that these ﬁnancial assets are impaired.

Currency translation
The ﬁnancial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar, which is the
functional currency of the Company.

Changes in the fair values of ﬁnancial assets at fair value through proﬁt or
loss including the effects of currency translation, interest and dividends,
are recognised in income and expenditure when the changes arise.

The SDF assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a ﬁnancial asset or a group of ﬁnancial assets is impaired
and recognises an allowance for impairment when such evidence exists.

Payables

2.6

Cash and bank deposits
Cash and bank deposits include deposits with ﬁnancial institutions, which are
subject to an insigniﬁcant risk of change in value and deposits held at call with
a central government agency.

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an
impairment allowance account which is calculated as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash ﬂows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. When the
asset becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
recognised against the same line item in income and expenditure.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

3. OPERATING AND OTHER INCOME

3. OPERATING AND OTHER INCOME (continued)
2010

2009

$

$

With effect from 1 October 2008, SDL contribution is payable by employers for all
employees up to the ﬁrst $4,500 of gross monthly remuneration at the rate of 0.25%
or $2, whichever is higher.

147,180,350

136,887,953

Prior to 1 October 2008, SDL contribution was payable by employers for all
employees whose gross remuneration is less than or equal to $2,000 per month at
the rate of 1% or $2, whichever is higher.

5,778,452

3,168,823

10,451,797

5,934,113

Operating income
Skills development levy (“SDL”) from:
- Private sector
- Statutory boards
- Government
Other

29,085

52,185

163,439,684

146,043,074

Other income

4. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

Cash at bank

Interest income from:
- bank deposits

3,012,162

5,395,825

Deposits at call held with the Ministry of Finance,
Accountant – General’s Department

- ﬁnancial assets, held-to-maturity

3,035,512

4,546,918

Short-term bank deposits

47,099

-

6,094,773

9,942,743

169,534,457

155,985,817

Other

Total

Skills Development Fund Financial Statements

2010

2009

$

$

100,203,379

5,674,235

11,484,890

6,532,460

573,150,000

523,500,000

684,838,269

535,706,695

The short-term bank ﬁxed deposits have an average maturity of 9 months
(2009: 7 months) from the end of the ﬁnancial year with a weighted average effective
interest rate of 0.52% (2009: 0.62%) per annum.
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For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

5. LEVY AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS, AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS (continued)
2010

2009

$

$

74,579

170,079

Levy collection due from
Central Provident Fund Board (“CPF”)

1,381,428

1,185,577

Interest receivable

1,994,948

1,930,065

-

57,343

3,450,955

3,343,064

Refund of assistance previously
disbursed and underpaid levy receivable

Other receivables

(a)

An agreement was entered with Fullerton Fund Management in July 2007 to
manage this 100% capital protected investment for SDF for a period of ﬁve
years. The investment objective is to achieve consistent long-term capital
appreciation in the value of its assets by diversifying into various investments.
The estimated return is targeted at 5% to 6% per annum.
(b)

2010

2009
(restated)

2008
(restated)

$

$

$

At fair value on initial recognition
Capital protected investments:

- Amundi Capital Protection 90% Fund due
1 August 2011 (previously known as Credit
Agricole Asset Management Capital Protection
90% Fund due 1 August 2011)

Skills Development Fund Financial Statements

Amundi Capital Protection 90% Fund (previously known as Credit Agricole
Asset Management (“CAAM”) Capital Protection 90% Fund)
An agreement was entered with Amundi Asset Management Singapore Limited
(previously known as Credit Agricole Asset Management Singapore Limited)
in August 2008 to manage this 90% capital protected investment for SDF for
a period of three years. The investment objective is to preserve capital value,
allow for capital appreciation, and optimise the overall investment returns at
acceptable risk levels through adequate diversiﬁcation. The estimated return
is targeted at 4% per annum.

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS, AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

- Robeco Fullerton Bond due 15 August 2012

Robeco Fullerton Bond

95,760,000

92,060,000

98,400,000

164,380,017

148,250,799

-

260,140,017

240,310,799

98,400,000

On 23 February 2010, Credit Agricole Asset Management Singapore Limited
informed that following the creation of Amundi Group on 31 December 2008
after the completion of the merger of Credit Agricole Asset Management and
Societe Generale Asset Management, the name of the fund would be changed
from “CAAM SIBOR Plus Fund” to “Amundi SIBOR Plus Fund” and the name
of the sub-fund. “CAAM Capital Protection 90% Fund” would be changed
to “Amundi Capital Protection 90% Fund” with effect from 2 March 2010.
The re-branding would not result in any change to the investment objective,
policy, the Guarantee and day-to-day investment management activities of
the “Amundi Capital Protection 90% Fund”.
The fair values of capital protected investments are based on the net asset value
of the fund or the present value of the protected redemption amount, whichever
is higher.
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For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS, HELD-TO-MATURITY

8. PAYABLES
2010

2009
(restated)

2008
(restated)

$

$

$

Quoted bonds
- Singapore Government bonds

86,536,239

109,871,908

174,692,810

-

25,000,000

25,000,000

86,536,239

134,871,908

199,692,810

- Singapore corporate bonds

Less: ﬁnancial assets maturing later than 12 months
Financial assets maturing within 12 months

(24,238,579)
62,297,660

(87,896,370) (136,148,123)
46,975,538

63,544,687

2009

$

$

Assistance committed and payable and overpaid
levy refundable

856,591

605,093

Other payables

143,904

65,358

1,000,495

670,451

9. COMMITMENTS
Training assistance granted by WDA under the SDF but not approved for
disbursements at the balance sheet date are as follows:

The quoted bonds have ﬁxed interest rates ranging from 3.63% to 4.63%. (2009: 2.38% to 4.63%) per
annum and have maturity periods ranging from 3 to 15 months (2009: 6 to 27 months).

2010

Training assistance committed for disbursement

Fair value of ﬁnancial assets, held-to-maturity

2010

2009

$

$

201,117,795

117,015,585

The fair values of ﬁnancial assets, held-to-maturity at the balance sheet date are as follows:

10. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
2010

2009
(restated)

2008
(restated)

$

$

87,506,600

111,796,137

179,502,100

-

24,889,431

25,319,500

87,506,600

136,685,568

204,821,600

$
Quoted Singapore Government bonds
Quoted Singapore corporate bonds

The fair values of quoted bonds are based on the last bid prices at the balance sheet date.
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Financial risk factors
The SDF is subject to market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk) and credit risk.
The SDF recognises that management of ﬁnancial risk is an important aspect to
discharge its regulatory functions, objects and duties under the Skills Development
Levy Act, Cap. 306. The SDF has adopted risk management practices to mitigate
these risks in a cost effective manner.
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For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

10. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

10. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The SDF does not hold or issue derivative ﬁnancial instruments for trading purposes
or to hedge against ﬂuctuations, if any, in interest rates and foreign exchange.

(a)

Market risk (continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk

(a)

Market risk
(i)

Cash ﬂow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial
instrument will ﬂuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a ﬁnancial instrument
will ﬂuctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a ﬁnancial instrument will
ﬂuctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The SDF has cash balances placed with reputable banks and ﬁnancial
institutions and has limited exposure to interest rate risk as variable rate
interest-bearing assets are mainly of a short-term nature. Interest rates on
its investments in bonds are ﬁxed. The SDF manages its interest rate risk
by placing such balances on varying maturities and interest rate terms.

The SDF’s operations are not exposed to signiﬁcant foreign currency
risks as its transactions as well as its assets and liabilities are mainly
denominated in Singapore Dollar.
(ii) Price risk
(b)
Price risk is the risk that the value of a ﬁnancial instrument will ﬂuctuate
due to changes in market prices whether those changes are caused by
factors speciﬁc to the individual security or its issuer or factors affecting
all securities traded in the market.
The SDF is exposed to equity securities price risk arising from the capital
protected investments which are classiﬁed on the balance sheet as
ﬁnancial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss. However, the SDF has
positive intention and ability to hold its investments in bonds and capital
protected investments to maturity, therefore downside equity price risk is
minimal.

Skills Development Fund Financial Statements

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in ﬁnancial loss to the SDF.
The SDF’s major classes of ﬁnancial assets are bank deposits, levy and other
receivables and ﬁnancial assets, held-to-maturity and at fair value through
proﬁt or loss. The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of ﬁnancial
assets is the carrying amount of that class of ﬁnancial instruments presented
on the balance sheet.
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For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010
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10. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

10. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

(b)

The credit risk for levy and other receivables based on the information provided
to key management is as follows:
2010

2009

$

$

(ii) Financial assets that are past due and/or impaired
There is no other class of ﬁnancial assets that is past due and/or impaired
except for levy and other receivables.
The age analysis of levy and other receivables past due but not impaired
is as follows:

By counterparties
- Government *

2,310,641

2,376,040

- Other companies

1,140,314

967,024

3,450,955

3,343,064

* Government includes Statutory Boards and Government agencies.

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

2010

2009

$

$

Past due < 3 months

25,045

-

Past due 3 to 6 months

19,976

60,009

Past due over 6 months

7,263

109,613

52,284

169,622

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
The carrying amount of levy and other receivables is not impaired.
Cash and bank deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly
deposits held with a central government agency, and ﬁnancial institutions
which have high credit-ratings as determined by international creditrating agencies.
Financial assets, held-to-maturity that are neither past due nor impaired
are investments held with government agencies or high investment grade
corporate bonds. Financial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss are
investments held with high credit quality counterparties.

(c)

Capital risk
The SDF’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the SDF is
adequately capitalised and that it fulﬁlls the objects for which moneys of the
SDF may be applied under the Skills Development Levy Act (Chapter 306).
The SDF is not subject to any capital requirements under the Skills Development
Levy Act (Chapter 306) nor any other externally imposed capital requirements.

Levy and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are
substantially levy collection due from the Central Provident Fund Board
and interest receivable from above-mentioned ﬁnancial institutions.
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10. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

11. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

(d)

Fair value measurements
Effective 1 April 2009, SDF adopted the amendment to SB-FRS 107 which requires disclosure
of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:
(a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

During the current ﬁnancial year, the SDF reclassiﬁed its capital protected
investments from held-to-maturity ﬁnancial assets to ﬁnancial assets at fair value
through proﬁt or loss.
The ﬁnancial statements for the ﬁnancial years ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March
2009 have been restated to reﬂect the above change. The effects on the ﬁnancial
statements are as follows:

(b) inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (is as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2); and

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March
2009

(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).
The following table presents the assets measured at fair value at 31 March 2010.

As previously
reported

Restatement

As restated

$

$

$

Statement of comprehensive income
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$

$

$

$

Assets
Financial assets, at fair value
through proﬁt or loss

Fair value losses on ﬁnancial assets
at fair value through proﬁt or loss
Net surplus for the ﬁnancial year/
Total comprehensive income

-

260,140,017

-

-

(8,089,201)

(8,089,201)

77,332,052

(8,089,201)

69,242,851

260,140,017

The fair values of ﬁnancial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss are based on dealer
quotes at the balance sheet date. These instruments are included in Level 2.
The carrying value less impairment provision of current levy receivables and payables
approximate to their fair values.
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11. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (continued)

12. NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
As at 31 March 2009

As previously
reported

Restatement

As restated

$

$

$

337,896,370

(250,000,000)

87,896,370

-

240,310,799

240,310,799

52,112,520

(9,689,201)

42,423,319

Balance sheet
Financial assets,
held to maturity – non-current
Financial assets, at fair value
through proﬁt or loss – non-current
Accumulated surplus/(deﬁcit)

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have
been published and are mandatory for the SDF’s accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2010 or later periods and which the SDF has not early adopted. The
SDF does not expect that adoption of these accounting standards or interpretations
will have a material impact on the SDF’s ﬁnancial statements.

13. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These ﬁnancial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of
WDA on 15 July 2010.

As at 31 March 2008
As previously
reported

Restatement

As restated

$

$

$

236,148,123

(100,000,000)

136,148,123

-

98,400,000

98,400,000

(25,219,532)

(1,600,000)

(26,819,532)

Balance sheet
Financial assets,
held to maturity – non-current
Financial assets, at fair value
through proﬁt or loss – non-current
Accumulated surplus/(deﬁcit)

Skills Development Fund Financial Statements

Skills Development Fund Financial Statements

135

136
1

CONTENT
Statement by Management

2

Auditors' Report

3

Statement of Financial Position

5

Receipts and Expenditure Statement

6

Notes to the Financial Statements

7

LIFELONG LEARNING
ENDOWMENT FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

asdasdasdasdasdasdas

Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund Financial Statements
asdfghjkl;'

137
2

138
3

LIFELONG LEARNING ENDOWMENT FUND

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MINISTRY OF MANPOWER
ON LIFELONG LEARNING ENDOWMENT FUND

In the opinion of the Management, the accompanying ﬁnancial statements are drawn up
in accordance with the provisions of the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund Act 2001
(the “Act”) so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Lifelong Learning
Endowment Fund for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010.

We have audited the accompanying ﬁnancial statements of the Lifelong Learning
Endowment Fund, which comprise the statement of ﬁnancial position as at 31 March
2010, and the receipts and expenditure statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these ﬁnancial
statements in accordance with the provisions of the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Act 2001 (the “Act”). This responsibility includes:
(a)

LOH KHUM YEAN

ONG BEE LEE (MS)

Permanent Secretary
Ministry of Manpower

Director/Corporate Planning Department
(Ministry of Manpower)

(b)
(c)

devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufﬁcient to provide
a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised
use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are
recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair income and
expenditure accounts and balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assets.
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund’s policy is to prepare the ﬁnancial statements on
the cash receipts and disbursements basis. On this basis, revenue is recognised when
received rather than when earned and expenses are recognised when paid rather than
when incurred.
Date: 17 May 2010

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these ﬁnancial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the ﬁnancial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the ﬁnancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the ﬁnancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the ﬁnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
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LIFELONG LEARNING ENDOWMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 March 2010
Registered Ofﬁce:

Ministry of Manpower
18 Havelock Road #07-01
Singapore 059764

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the ﬁnancial
statements.

2010

2009

S$

S$

3

3,308,213,180

3,208,275,823

4

3,308,213,180

3,208,275,823

Note

Accumulated Fund
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
OPINION
In our opinion,
(a) the ﬁnancial statements of Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund are properly drawn
up in accordance with the provisions of the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund Act
2001 (the “Act”), and on the basis sets out in the preceding paragraph, present
fairly, in all material aspects, the state of affairs of the Lifelong Learning Endowment
Fund as at 31 March 2010 and the receipts and expenditure of the Lifelong Learning
Endowment Fund for the year ended on that date;
(b)

the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Lifelong
Learning Endowment Fund have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act; and

(c)

the receipts, expenditure and investment of monies and the acquisition and disposal
of assets by the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund have been done in accordance
with the provisions of the Act.

Balance at end of the year

Represented by :
Funds with Accountant-General

GEETHA A & ASSOCIATES
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Singapore,
Date: 17 May 2010
THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LIFELONG LEARNING ENDOWMENT FUND

LIFELONG LEARNING ENDOWMENT FUND

RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For Financial Year Ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010
These notes form an integral part of the ﬁnancial statements. The ﬁnancial statements were
authorised for issue by the Ministry of Manpower on 17 May 2010.

Note

2010

2009

S$

S$

The Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund (“the Fund”) is established in Singapore.
The address of the Ministry’s principal place of activity is at 18 Havelock Road, #0701, Singapore 059764.

Receipts during the year

Capital contribution from Government

100,000,000

800,000,000

Income from investments

130,352,237

133,253,136

3,435,623

1,449,910

233,787,860

934,703,046

132,125,871

91,487,037

1,717,702

5,944,872

6,930

6,880

133,850,503

97,438,789

99,937,357

837,264,257

3,208,275,823

2,371,011,566

3,308,213,180

3,208,275,823

Other receipts

5

Expenditure during the year

Grants disbursed

6

Marketing and promotion expenses
Administrative expenses

Excess of Receipts over Expenditure
Accumulated fund balance brought forward
Accumulated fund balance carried forward

3

1. DOMICILE AND ACTIVITIES

The Fund is set up by the Singapore Government (“the Government”) under the
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund Act 2001 (“the Act”) for the acquisition of
skills and expertise by persons, and the development and upgrading of skills and
expertise of persons to enhance their employability; and the promotion of the
acquisition, development and upgrading of skills and expertise to enhance the
employability of persons.
The Fund, which came into operation with effect from 12 March 2001, had an initial
capital of $500 million. The Government may make further payments of capital
money into the Fund from time to time. Only income earned from the Fund will be
used. The Fund is deemed to be a Government fund for the purposes of any written
law in Singapore.
The Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”) has been appointed as the
programme manager of the Fund to receive and deploy the grant for programmes
that are congruent with the objectives of the Fund.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1

Basis of preparation
The ﬁnancial statements are expressed in Singapore dollars.
In line with the Government’s accounting policy, the cash basis of accounting
is adopted. On the basis, receipts are recognised when received rather than
earned and expenses are recognised when paid rather than when incurred.

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

3. ACCUMULATED FUND

3. ACCUMULATED FUND (CONTINUED)
Note

2010

2009

S$

S$

Capital contribution from Government

(a)

3,100,000,000

3,000,000,000

Income from investments

(b)

208,213,180

208,275,823

3,308,213,180

3,208,275,823

a)

b)

This relates to capital money paid into the Fund by the Government from the
Consolidated Revenue Account. Under Section 4(4) of the Act, this amount shall
not be used for any purpose other than for investment.
This relates to investment income earned on the Fund balance. The investment
income is arrived at after deducting investment expenses, grants made to institutions
and other expenses as approved under the Act.

Note

2010
S$

Income from investments

2009
S$

208,213,180

208,275,823

Past reserves protected

(c)

(123,915,245)

(123,915,245)

Income from investments available for
expenditure

(d)

84,297,935

84,360,578

c)

This relates to reserves which are protected as a result of Government requirements.
Investment income earned from the Fund previously will be protected when there
is a change-over in government. This would ensure that the present government
would only spend what it has earned in its term of ofﬁce.

asdasdasdasdasdasdas
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d)

This amount is available for payment of future approved expenses and
distribution as grants to institutions to be applied for the purpose of all or any
of the following purposes as deﬁned under the Act:
(i)

the provision of ﬁnancial assistance or incentives to persons to acquire,
develop or upgrade, whether in Singapore or elsewhere, skills and
expertise to enhance their employability;

(ii) the research or development, whether in Singapore or elsewhere, in or
of learning methods and technology to enhance the acquisition,
development or upgrading of such skills and expertise;
(iii) the promotion of the acquisition, development or upgrading of such skills
and expertise;
(iv) the provision of ﬁnancial assistance or incentives to persons to carry out,
whether in Singapore or elsewhere, activities or programmes which are
consistent with objects of the Fund;
(v) the establishment, expansion or maintenance of facilities, whether in
Singapore or elsewhere, to be used for purposes consistent with the
objects of the Fund; and
(vi) such other purposes consistent with the objects of the Fund, whether
carried out in Singapore or elsewhere, as may be prescribed.

4. FUNDS WITH ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL
This represents funds held by the Accountant-General on behalf of the Fund. The
Fund is allocated investment income at prevailing Central Provident Fund’s rate of
return for Special and Retirement Accounts, currently at 3.95% (2009: 4.3%) per
annum.
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5. OTHER RECEIPTS

6. GRANTS DISBURSED (CONTINUED)

Refund of unused grant
Interest income

2010

2009

2010

2009

S$

S$

S$

S$

3,434,507

1,448,664

1,116

1,246

3,435,623

1,449,910

During the ﬁnancial year, the Fund made grants for the following programmes to
approved institutions:
2010

2009

S$

S$

Programmes
8,120,333

4,053,000

-

100,000

Management of PES Information Systems

765,992

472,805

Place & Train and Professional Conversion
Programmes

6,601,480

1,848,765

SMCP HealthCare

605,711

362,874

Home Ownership Plus Education (HOPE)
Programme

735,420

687,730

Women Enterprise Workz Cooperative (WeWorkz)

Executive Development Programme

asdasdasdasdasdasdas
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Enhancement of DCN’s Effectiveness

2,074,506

21,079

9,600

-

35,285,755

-

Job Redesign

-

8,000,000

ADVANTAGE!

165,764

647,841

6,190,851

9,570,804

1-Institute-2-Systems

-

15,400,000

Skills Advancement Allowance

-

24,000

Development and Implementation of Singapore
Employability Skills System (ESS)

3,005,000

6,973,485

Development and Implementation of the Chinese
Version of the Singapore Employability Skills
System (ESS)

1,658,305

83,888

Skills Standard and Framework Development

2,774,822

2,598,485

Manpower Surveys and Effectiveness Review
Studies

377,052

508,059

43,020,297

24,324,508

879,831

1,326,504

Self-Employment Assistance (SEA) Programme
Absentee Payroll Funding For Inemployment
Training

6. GRANTS DISBURSED

Public Employment Service Programme

Programmes

Enhanced ADVANTAGE! Scheme

CET Centres and Other Partnership Projects
21,340

17,360

Sectoral Speciﬁc Promotion/SPUR@SNEF
Promotion
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For the ﬁnancial year ended 31 March 2010

6. GRANTS DISBURSED (CONTINUED)

6. GRANTS DISBURSED (CONTINUED)
Note (a) – this is represented by:

2010

2009

S$

S$

163,060

241,608

Singapore Human Capital Summit

3,162,076

1,995,225

SPUR-Jobs

3,293,179

-

Service Excellence

1,422,000

1,912,866

Skills Upgrading Programmes

8,267,158

4,592,384

Administration and Miscellaneous Items

3,236,525

387,607

Project Phoenix

1,018,800

1,273,500

132,854,857

87,424,377

2010

Programmes
3 Year Block Grant to Facilitate The Transition
of HR Communities of Practice and Singapore
HR Community Portal To SHRI

WDA (a)

asdasdasdasdasdasdas
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S$

(728,986)

4,062,660

132,125,871

91,487,037

Grants disbursed by WDA out of unused
funds received from the Fund in the
previous ﬁnancial year
Unused portion of grants disbursed to
WDA in the current ﬁnancial year, available
for carry forward to the next ﬁnancial year
(a)

2009
S$

(5,400,461)

(1,337,801)

4,671,475

5,400,461

(728,986)

4,062,660
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